
 

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

02/04/2025 10:00 AM  
 

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA 
 

AGENDA 
 

This meeting will be held in person ONLY and the public is welcome to attend. 
 

For additional information or supporting documents please contact the  
Storey County Clerk’s Office at 775-847-0969. 

                                      
JAY CARMONA 
CHAIRMAN 
 
CLAY MITCHELL 
VICE-CHAIRMAN 
 
DONALD GILMAN 
COMMISSIONER 

ANNE LANGER 
DISTRICT ATTORNEY 

 
 
 
 

JIM HINDLE 
CLERK-TREASURER 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for 
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Health Board, Storey County Brothel 
License Board, Storey County Water and Sewer System Board, Storey County Highway Board and 
the Storey County Liquor and Licensing Board and during this meeting may convene as any of 
those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda. All matters listed under the 
consent agenda are considered routine and may be acted upon by the Board of County 
Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing.  Any member of the Board or 
any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted upon 
separately during this meeting.  Pursuant to NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be 
taken out of order, the public body may combine two or more agenda items for consideration, and 
the public body may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the 
agenda at any time.  The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time allotted for each 
individual to speak.  Public comment is limited to three minutes per individual. 
 
All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless 
marked otherwise. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M. 

 
2. CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 



4. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action): Public comment is welcomed at the beginning and end  
of each meeting. These comments should be limited to matters not already on today’s 
calendar agenda. Public comment is again welcomed after each item on the agenda, & those 
comments should be limited to the agendized topic. Public comment is limited to 3 minutes 
per individual. 
 

5. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
  

Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the February 4, 2025, 
meeting.  

 
6. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval of the minutes from the January 7, 2025, 
meeting.  

 
7. CONSENT AGENDA FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

 
I For possible action, approval of business license first readings: 

A. Cosco Fire Protection Inc. – Contractor / 3620 West Reno Ave, #K ~ 
            Las Vegas, NV 
B. Empire Southwest LLC– Out of County / 3300 St Rose Pkwy ~  
            Henderson, NV 
C. Inside Out Construction LLC – Contractor / 1940 Currant Ct. ~  
            Gardnerville, NV 
D. M.A. Mortenson Company – Contractor / 700 Meadow Ln. North ~ 
            Minneapolis, MN  
E. Reed’s Garage – General / 351 N. C St. ~ Virginia City, NV 
F.         Staffing Technical Services Inc. – Out of County / 
            528 W. Roosevelt Rd. Ste. 101 ~ Wheaton, IL  

 
II Approval of claims in the amount of $6,231,231.49.  

 
8. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports 

 
9. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment) 

 
10. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:  

  
Consideration and possible approval for the County Manager to sign and enter 
into a contract with Actalent for the provision of temporary construction 
staffing services to help meet project deadlines not to exceed $165,000.  

 
11. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval to authorize the County Manager to 
approve and sign a contract addendum between Storey County and Cintas 
Corporation No. 2, doing business as Cintas First Aid & Safety, for an additional 
AED to be located at the Storey County Community Development Office.  



 
12. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and Possible approval of Grant of Easement file 2025-017 from 
Storey County to NV Energy for Utility Facilities within the C Street Right-of-
Way near Flowery Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada to facilitate 
project development.  

 
13. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Discussion and possible approval of County staff regarding pending federal 
appropriation requests for federal fiscal year 2025, and dependent on the 
passage of the 2025 federal fiscal year budget, federal appropriation proposals 
for federal fiscal year 2026.  

 
14. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval to authorize Storey County Business 
Development to reallocate an amount not to exceed $4,000 of budgeted and 
available funds from the Professional Services account to host regional 
attendees at the National Association of Counties annual Legislative conference.
  

15. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
  

Consideration and possible approval to authorize Storey County Business 
Development to author and submit a letter supporting SB5 to make the 
Lieutenant Governor’s Office of Small Business Advocacy (OSBA) a permanent 
fixture within the Office of the Lieutenant Governor.  

 
16. DISCUSSION ONLY: 

  
Storey County FY25 2nd Quarter Financial Review.  

 
17. DISCUSSION ONLY: 

  
County Manager to provide a quarterly report to the board.  

 
18. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER BOARD 

 
19. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval to purchase 3 new Laser Turbidimeters 
and 4 new SC4500 Controllers for the water filters at the Water Treatment Plant 
in the amount of $32,281.35 with SCADA programming not to exceed $5,000 for 
a grand total of $37,281.35.  

 
 
 
 



 
20. DISCUSSION ONLY: 

  
Water-Sewer FY25 2nd Quarter Financial Review.  

 
21. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

BOARD 
 
22. DISCUSSION ONLY: 

  
Fire District FY25 2nd Quarter Financial Review.  

 
23. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval for policy P603 Sick Leave and policy P602 
Annual Leave with modifications allowing leave buyout amounts at the time of 
retirement to be utilized to purchase PERS service credits.  

 
24. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval to dispose of by means of auction, 
donation, sale, or trade-in, of a 2006 Yukon and a 2006 Ford F350 Dozer tender.
  

25. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY HIGHWAY BOARD 
 
26. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Election of Secretary to the Board of Storey County Highway Commissioners for 
the term of one year.  

 
27. DISCUSSION ONLY: 

  
Report of Public Works Department regarding roads and highways throughout 
Storey County.  

 
28. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS 
 
29. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Discussion and possible consideration approving the Storey County Sheriff's 
Office receipt of a Grant from the State of Nevada Department of Public Safety, 
Office of Criminal Justice Assistance in the amount of $30,836.64, Federal 
Award# l SPBJA-21-GG-00252-MUMU, to be used for travel and equipment 
purchase of 2 drug detection K9s and miscellaneous costs associated with this 
purchase.  

 
 
 



30. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
  

Discussion and possible consideration approving the Storey County Sheriff's 
Office to receive a grant from the State of Nevada Department of Public Safety, 
Office of Criminal Justice Assistance in the Amount of $15,000, Federal Award 
Number l SPBJA-22-GG-00625-MUMU to be used for training and travel arid 
misc. equipment indicated as other for deputies assigned to the Storey County 
Sheriff's Office Drug Initiative Program.  

 
31. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Discussion and consideration approving the Storey County Sheriff's Office to 
receive one Humvee 4-wheel-drive vehicle Serial Number l 4016NV00004 from 
the Douglas County Sheriff's Office through the State of Nevada l 033 LESO 
program for use as a Search and Rescue Vehicle as well as use in parades and 
for community outreach events.  

 
32. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval to re-appoint Scott Jolcover to a 4-year 
term on the Storey County Board of Equalization.  

 
33. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Consideration and possible approval to accept a quote from Coons Construction 
for site improvements at 800 South C Street to provide sidewalk widening for 
ADA compliance, bollards for building protection, and a flagpole in an amount 
not to exceed $21,478.00 and to authorize the County Manager to sign the 
contract for construction.  

 
34. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 

  
Update, discussion, and provide direction to county staff and lobbyists 
regarding upcoming bills and legislation affecting Storey County including, but 
not limited to, the following: SB69 Storey County bill adjusting tax abatement 
programming, SB78 amending regulations related to the Comstock Historic 
District Commission; AB77 tax abatements; BDR S-404 V&T Railway, AB14 
voter registration of candidates; AB70 energy; AB96 master plans contents; 
AB64 open meeting law; AB66 addition of district judges; proposals relating to 
the number of required planning commissioners; and other bills and BDRs 
potentially affecting Storey County.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



35. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
  

For consideration and possible approval of business license second readings: 
A. 24/7 Rapid Repair Services– Out of County / 8368 Almadine Dr. ~  
            Sacramento, CA 
B. ABS Facility Services – Contractor / 560 S. Promenade Ave. Ste 101 ~  
            Corona, CA 
C. Amundson Roofing – Contractor / 300 395 US Highway ~  
            New Washoe City, NV 
D. Blusky Restoration Contractors LLC – Contractor /  
            9110 E. Nichols Ave. Ste. 180 ~ Centennial, CO 
E. Buck’s Plumbing & Heating – Contractor / 275 Gallaway Ln. ~ Reno, NV 
F. EPC Services Company – Contractor / 1241 S 31st St. W. ~ Billings, MT 
G. GGRM Lawfirm – General / 420 USA Parkway # 106 ~ McCarran, NV 
H. I.S.E. Plumbing, Heating & Air – Contractor / 3551 Penn National Dr. ~ 
            Reno, NV 
I. Keller North America, Inc. – Contractor / 7550 Teague Rd. Ste. 300 ~  
            Hanover, MD 
J. Kroeker Inc. – Contractor / 4627 S. Chestnut Ave. ~ Fresno, CA 
K. Masterfield Construction – Contractor / 1455 Deming Way # 12 ~ 
            Sparks, NV 
L. Mini Mart – General / 580 E. Sydney ~ McCarran, NV 
M.        Treats Galore LLC – Out of County / 575 Magistrate Ct. ~ Reno, NV
  

36. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action): Public comment is welcomed at the beginning and end  
of each meeting. These comments should be limited to matters not already on today’s 
calendar agenda. Public comment is again welcomed after each item on the agenda, & those 
comments should be limited to the agendized topic. Public comment is limited to 3 minutes 
per individual. 
 

37. ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA 
 
38. CLOSED SESSION: 

  
Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose 
of conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor 
negotiations with the Storey County Firefighters’ Association IAFF Local 4227. 
This meeting will commence immediately following the regular commission 
meeting.  

 
39. CLOSED SESSION: 

  
Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose 
of conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor 
negotiations with the Storey County Employees’ Association Comstock 
Chapter, AFSCME Local 4041. This meeting will begin immediately following 
the closed session with the Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners.  

 



NOTICE: 
• Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings. 
• Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding 

the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969. 
• Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear. 
• Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited 

to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon 
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the 
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the 
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes. 

• Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color, 
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin. 

• In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil 
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and 
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from 
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including 
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/parental status, 
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for 
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all 
bases apply to all programs).  Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or 
incident. 
Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program 
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact 
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or 
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339.  Additionally, program 
information may be made available in languages other than English.  
To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination 
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at 
http://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a 
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.  
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992.  Submit your completed form or 
letter to USDA by:  
 
(1) mail:  U.S. Department of Agriculture  
                 Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights  

           1400 Independence Avenue, SW  
           Washington, D.C. 20250-9410.  
 

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or  
 
(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.  
 
USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender. 
 

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special 
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in 
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440. 
 

mailto:program.intake@usda.gov


 
CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 

I, Drema Smith,  Administrative Assistant to Storey County, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused 
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 1/30/2025;  Storey County 
Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N 
C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, 
VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.  
This agenda was also posted to the Nevada State website at https://notice.nv.gov/ and to the Storey 
County website at: https://www.storeycounty.org/agendacenter  
 
 
By ______________________________________ 
    Drema Smith 
    Administrative Assistant II           

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

https://notice.nv.gov/
https://www.storeycounty.org/agendacenter


Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 1 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the February 4, 2025,
meeting.

• Recommended motion: Approve or amend as necessary.

• Prepared by: Drema S Smith

Department: Commissioners     Contact Number: 7758470968

• Staff Summary: See attached.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

        5



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the minutes from the January 7, 2025,
meeting.

• Recommended motion: Approve or amend as necessary.

• Prepared by: Jim Hindle

Department: Clerk & Treasurer     Contact Number: 7758470969

• Staff Summary: See Attached.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       6



STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS MEETING        

1/7/2025 10:00 AM   
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NV 

_________________________________________________________ 

MEETING MINUTES 

JAY CARMONA CLAY MITCHELL DONALD GILMAN 
CHAIRMAN          VICE-CHAIRMAN    COMMISSIONER

ANNE LANGER   JIM HINDLE   
DISTRICT ATTORNEY CLERK-TREASURER 

_____________________________________________________________ 
Roll Call 

• Commissioners Carmona, Gilman, and Mitchel Present – quorum present

Total Attendance: 44 
________________________________________________________________________ 

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Commission Chairman Jay Carmona called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.

2. CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Election of Chairman to the Storey County
Board of Commissioners for the term of one year in compliance with NRS 244.070 and
County Code 2.04.008.

Public Comment: None



Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to elect Jay Carmona as Chairman to the Storey 
County Board of Commissioners for the term of one year in compliance with NRS 244.070 
and County Code 2.04.008. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

5. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Election of Vice-Chairman to the Storey County
Board of Commissioners for the term of one year in compliance with NRS 244.070 and
County Code 2.04.008.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Carmona, move to approve motion to elect Clay Mitchell as Vice
Chairman to the Storey County Board of Commissioners for the term of one year in
compliance with NRS 244.070 and County Code 2.04.008. Seconded by: Donald Gilman.
Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

6. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action):

7. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the
agenda for the January 7, 2025, meeting.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve today’s agenda as presented. Seconded
by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

8. CONSENT AGENDA FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:
I. For possible action, approval of business license first readings:

A. Apollo Mechanical Contractors– General / 2400 Peru Dr. ~ McCarran, NV
B. Erthos Manufacturing LLC – Out of County / 740 S. Mill Ave. Ste. 210 ~ Tempe, AZ
C. Erthos Partner Services LLC – Out of County / 740 S. Mill Ave. Ste. 210 ~ Tempe, AZ
D. Honeywell International Inc. – Out of County / 715 Peachtree St. ~ N.E. Atlanta, GA
E. KAWM Group LLC – Contractor / 1426 Foothill Rd. ~ Reno, NV
F. Mazak Optonics Corporation – Out of County / 2725 Galvin Ct. ~ Elgin, IL
G. McCuan Metals Inc. – Contractor / 1320 High Chaparral Dr. ~ Reno, NV
H. Precision Fitness Training, LLC – Home Based / 4680 Hanaupah Rd. ~ Reno, NV
I. Silicon Valley Mechanical, Inc. – Contractor / 2115 Ringwood Ave. ~ San Jose, CA

II. 24-25 Property Tax bill correction in the amount of ($153.21) for parcel 3-431-02.
Concrete was picked up during the 2024-25 reappraisal and it is personal property nontaxable
pavers. Resulting in a reduction in taxes of $153.21.

III. Approval of claims in the amount of $19,747,408.93.



Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve today’s Consent agenda as presented: 
Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

9. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Resolution No. 25-756 honoring retired Storey
County Commissioner Lance Gilman for his 12 years of service to the residents and
businesses of Storey County.

County Manager Austin Osborne said that Lance Gilman had been commissioner for 12 years,
and during his time and even before he was elected, he has paid attention to seniors, at-risk
people, and all the communities in the county. He has provided careers and jobs at TRIC and,
despite challenges, he set the foundation to have Storey County be what it is today. He led the
focus that we have for residents and stakeholders. Mr. Gilman has set a standard for our
leaders to manage our county with the goal that we always get better. I want to thank him for
the service and dedication he has provided.

Commissioner Jay Carmona said Mr. Gilman has seen Storey County in its poorest days, but
times have changed, and without the insight of Mr. Gilman and his fellow Commissioners at
the time, the county would not be in the position it is today.

Public Comment: Comptroller Jennifer McCain said she has worked with Mr. Gilman since he
started, and has the utmost respect for him, and felt it was reciprocated, whether I was the
water girl or the comptroller. He had a vision for Storey County and he made sure that vision
was fulfilled, and we owe him a debt of gratitude.

Assessor Jana Seddon said thank you to Mr. Gilman, who has been a part of her work since
2003, and it has been amazing to watch the growth, with the land divisions and improvements
in the county. It has been amazing to see what he has done for this county, even before he was
a commissioner.

Mr. Gilman first thanked the staff for all their work, and expressed how proud he was of them.
He said he arrived in the county 25 years ago after working in Reno on the South Meadows
business park with Roger Norman, and together they purchased 100,000 acres in the
McCarran Ranch area of the county. We didn’t want to leave Nevada. He found the ranch and
we started learning about what the challenges would be. He noted that Storey County had
once been the richest in the state during the Comstock Lode, but at that time it was the
poorest. The sheriff’s office bought used vehicles then - one had no reverse. Bill Leary and
Gary Hames bought used equipment and made it work. Dean Haymore had the vision. As did
the Hess family, Bum Hess has been a stand-up leader, you have a history of leaders and a
culture of people who don’t give up. The county was bankrupt when he arrived. There was
discussion at the State level to split Storey between Washoe and Lyon counties because we
could not support ourselves. We came in and gave $400,000 to the schools to fix the roofs.



Then, after Joe Conforte left, Mr. Gilman said he was asked to operate the brothel, which 
would generate the $500,000 in taxes that the county needed. He said he had owned other 
businesses, and decided it was just retail, so he purchased the brothel. TRIC was not supposed 
to be a success; Storey County was told by other officials that it would never be successful. 
We were facing building a new city in little Storey County from scratch. If Donald Trump 
were to find a single administrative group in this nation, Storey should be the blueprint of 
given what you folks have built. We fought and struggled and built and did what we needed to 
do. All the folks around you are envious, and they want your stuff. You are in a wonderful 
position to fight. You are doing the things you need to do in Carson City and other places. He 
praised his son, Don, now a commissioner, Austin Osborne as a county manager, and his 
fellow commissioners. He thanked the staff and all the residents. 

 
Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve Resolution No. 25-756 honoring retired 
Storey County Commissioner Lance Gilman for his 12 years of service to the residents and 
businesses of Storey County. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
Commissioner Mitchell then read the resolution, and a plaque was presented to Mr. Gilman. 
Photos were taken. 

 
10. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 

DISTRICT BOARD  
 
11. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Badge pinning ceremony for Battalion Chief 

Bryce Montoya and Fire Captain Matt Dixon, after successfully completing their promotional 
probationary period.  

 
Fire Chief Jeremy Loncar introduced Chief Bryce Montoya and Capt. Matt Dixon for the 
badge pinning and oaths of office after the two passed their probationary periods. 

 
Jay Carmona administered the oath of their new positions, and they received their badges. 
Photos were taken. 

 
Public Comment: None 

 
12. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS  
 
13. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports  
 

Fire District 
• Chief Loncar said the district’s website has gone live. Go to www.storeyfire.org.  

 

http://www.storeyfire.org/


Business Development Office 
• Officer Lara Mather said the Storey County website is looking better. She said businesses

need to look to it to find a tremendous amount of resources are available from the state or
others. She said all links are working.

VCTC 
• Tourism Director Todd Tuttle said it was a great turnout for Christmas on the Comstock.

– visits for the event were up year over year. There was an increase in media coverage.
All four TV stations and radio stations covered the event. He thanked businesses who
decorated. The Palace won the Christmas illumination contest.

• Staff are attending the American Bus Association meeting in Philadelphia this month.
• A new calendar of events is out. Pick one up from the Visitor’s Center or go online.
• Feb. 15 is the Devil Made Me Do It Saloon Crawl.
• March 15 is the 34th annual Rocky Mountain Oyster Fry, St. Patrick’s Day Parade and the

St. Patrick Made Me Do It Saloon Crawl.
• Mr. Tuttle said he appreciated all the help from Public Works and the Sheriff’s Office

during the holiday season and events.
• A week from today will be the monthly Mix and Mingle at Piper’s Opera House which

will highlight the topic of  Safety.

Comptroller’s Office 
• Comptroller Jennifer McCain has requested department head budgets. Call her if there

are any questions.
• She welcomed Donnie Gilman to the Commission.

Public Relations Office 
• Julia Moreno-Fritz said footage from the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, Virginia City and

the Virginia City Highlands was included in a commercial. It will air, among other places,
during Sam Shad’s Nevada Newsmakers program.

• Billboards are on Highway 395 and College Parkway in Carson City, and the Damonte
Ranch exit on Interstate 580 in Reno. This is not only to get tourists’ attention, but the
attention of lawmakers heading to and from Carson City.

County Manager’s Office 
• County Manager Austin Osborne said the legislative team and internal team were

working together on legislation coming out of the Legislative Counsel Bureau. Some
bills, SB69, for abatement issues, which have received attention but have not had any
pushback yet. SB78, a bill to combine the Comstock Historic District with other state
boards, is being seriously considered. There are more bills coming up that could make it
an interesting session.

• He praised Ms. Moreno-Fritz for her work on the commercial and overall PR and said the
broad government approach will be fabulous.



• Mr. Osborne said the staff were still working on Piper’s Opera House with engineers to
check on three structural issues and make some fixes before any action can be taken with
the one nonprofit who responded to the RFQ. The target is Spring of 2025.

14. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment):
Commissioner Carmona said Kirsten Kirkness of the Highlands passed away in July 2024
and asked for a moment of silence.

19. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of
unbudgeted grant-funded, Health Community Worker Position for the 2024-2025 Fiscal Year.

Health and Community Services Director Stacy York said the community health workers are 
funded through the State Department of Health and Human Services. Ms. York’s program, the 
Shelby Project, is in memory of her friend’s daughter, who died from addiction. The grant, for 
$250,370, includes partial funding for a body scanner and community health workers who will 
work with the sheriff’s office, and Community Chest on addiction treatment and prevention 
programs. This is to try to find long-term solutions for mental health, substance abuse and 
suicide prevention.  

Commissioner Mitchell asked about using grant funding for something that is expected to be an 
ongoing program. Ms. York said this comes from One Nevada settlement funds that may 
continue to be available in the future, but she expects to put it into her budget. 

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the unbudgeted grant-funded Health 
Community Worker Position for the 2024-2025 Fiscal Year. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

15. 10:30 A.M. PUBLIC HEARING: Public hearing to consider public comments on proposed
lease of that portion of Piper's Opera House known as the Old Corner Bar to VC Ponderosa
Saloon LLC for a monthly rental amount of $1,800.00 until December 31, 2025, with a two-
year renewal term. Changes to the lease that was approved on January 2, 2024, include the
removal of the requirement that the Ponderosa Saloon pay utilities; 35% of the monthly
electric billing and $50 for water service.

Comptroller Jennifer McCain said a late change put the effective date of Jan 1, 2025, instead
of Dec. 31, 2024, on the agreement. She said that after the Divide Fitness LLC decision,
which eliminates payments for utilities, Bill and Tami Migan, owners of Ponderosa Saloon
LLC (Old Corner Bar), sought a comparable amendment to their lease, involving a bar at
county-owned Piper’s Opera House.



Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to close this public hearing. Seconded by: Donald 
Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

16. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible action to approve a
revised lease for the Old Corner Bar located in Piper’s Opera House with Ponderosa Saloon
LLC. The proposed revision includes the removal of the electrical and water payments
requirement in Section 3.02, while continuing the monthly rental of $1,800 per month until
December 31, 2025, with possible two-year renewal.

Ms. McCain said this was instigated after the approval of the lease for Divide Fitness LLC.
The Migans came to them to find out why they had to pay for utilities when Divide Fitness
LLC didn’t. The revised lease will harmonize their agreement in line with other county
leases.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve a revised lease for the Old Corner Bar
located in Piper’s Opera House with Ponderosa Saloon LLC. The proposed revision includes
the removal of the electrical and water payments requirement in Section 3.02, while
continuing the monthly rental of $1,800 per month until December 31, 2025, with a possible
two-year renewal. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

17. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval to rescind
the July 18, 2023, approved agreement between Storey County and Ponderosa Saloon, LLC
(Old Corner Bar) pertaining to monthly payments of back utility payments.

Ms. McCain said In July 2023 it was discovered that utility payments had not been paid as
the Migans had not received the bills. An agreement was reached to update the payments, and
with the new lease we would like to rescind the agreement.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve to rescind July 18, 2023, approved
agreement between Storey County and Ponderosa Saloon, LLC (Old Corner Bar) pertaining
to monthly payments of back utility payments. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion
passed unanimously.

18. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible action to approve a
refund of electrical and water payments, past and current made by Ponderosa Saloon, LLC
(Old Corner Bar) with the updated lease and rescinding of the past due agreement in the
amount of $11,077.53.



Ms. McCain said with the new lease and the rescinding of the agreement, the owners of 
Ponderosa Saloon LLC have asked for a refund of the utility payments, totaling $11,077.53. 

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve a refund of electrical and water 
payments, past and current made by Ponderosa Saloon, LLC (Old Corner Bar) with the 
updated lease and rescinding of the past due agreement in the amount of $11,077.53. 
Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

20. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of
Resolution No. 24-755, a resolution setting grade and salary range of employees fixed by
ordinance or resolution per NRS 245.045 for appointed Storey County officials for the 2024-
25 fiscal year and superseding prior year action by resolution for appointed Storey County
employees with the addition of Community Health Worker Grade 116 and the reallocation of
Senior Services Director to Health & Community Services Director Grade 152.

Human Resources Director Brandie Lopez said the Health and Community Services Director,
formerly the Senior Services Director, has expanded to include a broad range of services not
limited to senior citizens. There are 20 employees and three managers, indigent funds and
services, and more. The County is seeking to upgrade the Director to grade 152. The
Community Health Worker position will be grade 116. The proposed increases are based on
external salary data as well as internal alignment to remain competitive.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve Resolution No. 24-755, a resolution
setting grade and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS
245.045 for appointed Storey County officials for the 2024-25 fiscal year and superseding
prior year action by resolution for appointed Storey County employees with the addition of
Community Health Worker Grade 116 and the reallocation of Senior Services Director to
Health & Community Services Director Grade 152. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote:
Motion passed unanimously.

21. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval for the
County Manager to sign and approve the cost reimbursement agreement between Storey
County and the Bureau of Land Management - Carson City District Office (BLM) for the
processing of the right-of-way application for the Lead Siphon Project. Work under this
agreement will not exceed $10,100.

Grants Manager Sara Sturtz said a portion of the project takes place on Bureau of Land
Management-controlled land, so a right-of-way application is needed, but the BLM doesn’t



have the funds appropriated yet. Because of the timeline for the project, BLM has given the 
County the option to sign the cost reimbursement agreement, estimating 92 work hours and 
other costs to be $10,100.  

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the County Manager to sign and 
approve the cost reimbursement agreement between Storey County and the Bureau of Land 
Management - Carson City District Office (BLM) for the processing of the right-ofway 
application for the Lead Siphon Project. Work under this agreement will not exceed $10,100. 
Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

22. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT BOARD

23. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval to make a
conditional offer to purchase the property located at 300 Italy Drive in McCarren Nevada,
APN 005-091-67, based upon the appraisal dated November 13, 2024, by Anthony J. Wren,
MAI, SRA Certified General Appraiser, including approval of opening escrow, and
completing a title search, not to exceed $3,800,000 and approximately $280,000 in applicable
closing costs.

Fire Chief Jeremy Loncar said the district has been looking at this property as Station 75, and
using the old building for the County to expand its services. We think it is a good move. It
will provide rapid response with plenty of room to grow. The district has composed an offer
letter for board approval. We have discussed this with the Comptroller.

Comptroller McCain said the Capital Improvement Projects account for the Fire District has
$3.3 million available so this will be about $1 million over budget and will take large
augments if this goes through.

Commissioner Gilman suggested a property on Waltham Way, but Chief Loncar said with
that acquisition, the district would be purchasing a shell of a building with a $7.5 million
estimate to bring up to the district’s needs. Chief Loncar said the Fire District will start
getting a bond rating, and they would have to find ways to fund it. Commissioner Gilman
thinks the Waltham Way property is in a great location, and asked about building from
scratch. Chief Loncar said it would be a savings as opposed to building from scratch.

Commissioner Mitchell suggested structuring it to prevent disruption on the fiscal side, but
pushing a payment into the next fiscal year.

Public Comment: None



Motion: I, Fire Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the making of a conditional offer 
to purchase the property located at 300 Italy Drive in McCarren Nevada, APN 005-091- 67, 
based upon the appraisal dated November 13, 2024, by Anthony J. Wren, MAI, SRA 
Certified General Appraiser, including approval of opening escrow, and completing a title 
search, not to exceed $3,800,000 and approximately $280,000 in applicable closing costs. In 
addition, I move to instruct the chief to look into options to split the costs of this acquisition 
between the current fiscal year and future fiscal years to minimize augmentation 
requirements. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

24. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and possible approval to utilize
available funds from the Capital Projects Fund for the purchase of a tractor and trailer that
were not budgeted for in the FY 2024 budget, but outlined in the district CIP, not to exceed
$300,000.

Fire Chief Loncar said this is the last item the district can capture within this year. It was in
the draft budget but was pulled. Things look good. We are seeking approval to see if we can
get it purchased. We can easily put it on next year’s budget but we would like to start looking
now.

Commissioner Mitchell suggested splitting the costs between budgets. Chief Loncar said he
was looking at other ways to finance it, in particular reimbursement from sending equipment
to outside wildland fires.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Fire Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve available funds from the Capital
Projects Fund for the purchase of a tractor and trailer that were not budgeted for in the FY
2024 budget, not to exceed $300,000. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed
unanimously.

25. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY HIGHWAY BOARD

26. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Report of Public Works Department regarding
roads and highways throughout Storey County.

Public Works Director Jason Wierzbicki said: 
• The 2025 Road Rehab is getting close to fruition. We will add curb and gutter, drainage

for O Street and in the Mark Twain area to get 100 percent funding.
• We would like to get started on the Six Mile Canyon Turn-around project.
• His department staff is down by three people but are interviewing candidates.

Commissioner Mitchell asked the staff to check on who is the Clerk to the Highway 
Board. And whether they need to be elected/appointed each year. 



Public Comment: None 

27. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

28. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Possible acceptance of a bid for replacement of
fuel tanks and pumps at 100 Toll Road and 1705 Peru Drive, from LA Perks Petroleum, in
the amount of $686,007.00. The acceptance of this bid will allow staff to issue a Notice of
Intent to Award to the apparent low bidder and solicit a contract for construction for legal
review. Upon legal approval, the contract will be brought before this board for approval.

Operations and Projects Coordinator Mike Northan said this is to replace the pumps and
tanks at the Storey County facility. There was one accepted bid. The pumps need to be
brought up to the current safety code.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve and accept this bid from LA Perks
Petroleum in an amount not to exceed $686,007.00 for the replacement of fuel tanks and
pumps at 100 Toll Road and 1705 Peru Drive. The acceptance of this bid will allow staff to
issue a Notice of Intent to Award to the apparent low bidder and solicit a contract for
construction for legal review. Upon legal approval, the contract will be brought before this
board for approval. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

29. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: For Consideration and possible approval of
acceptance of the 2024 Winter Grant round from the Nevada State Off Highway Vehicles
Commission for the grant amount of $28,065.78 for the Storey County Sheriff's Office, Off
Highway Vehicle Operations Unit.

Sheriff Mike Cullen said this is just accepting this grant for a quad and related trailer for the
off roader patrol unit.

Commissioner Mitchell said what do we have to add on, or what other impacts are there? Is
there anything we must cover. Sheriff Cullen said just use and wear and tear.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the receipt of grant funds of $28,065.78
from the Nevada State Off Highway Vehicles Commission 2024 Winter Grant Round for the
Storey County Sheriff's Office Off Highway Operations Unit. This grant will be used to
purchase equipment to enhance this units response to off highway incidents and for
community outreach. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.



30. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: For Consideration and possible approval of
receipt of a donation for the Storey County Sheriff's Office for the purchase of a traffic unit
for patrol, emergency response and community outreach.

Sheriff Cullen said we were offered a generous offer from Deb and Thomas Hayward,
business owners in the community, for $25,000 donation so the Office can purchase a
specific 2023 Dodge Challenger for $25,000. This vehicle will be used specifically for traffic
enforcement, emergency response and community outreach.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the receipt of a donation of $25,000
from Thomas and Debra Hayward for the purpose of vehicle purchase for the Storey County
Sheriff's Office for traffic enforcement, emergency response and community outreach.
Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

31. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval
authorizing the County Manager to sign and approve an amendment to an existing 2024-2025
contract between Storey County and Silver State Government Relations for lobbying and
government affairs services during the Nevada legislative interim and general sessions for
$6,500 per month effective July 1, 2024, through December 31, 2024, and $10,000 per month
effective January 1, 2025, through June 30, 2025.

County Manager Austin Osborne said this is already in place and there is an amendment to it
going into the main Legislative session that increases it to $10,000, which is commensurate
with the work that is needed. This involves working regionally and coordinating with the
team, in a proactive manner. This is within the County Manager’s budget.

Commissioner Carmona praised Silver State, which has improved relationships with
legislators.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to authorize the County Manager to sign and
approve an amendment to an existing 2024-2025 contract between Storey County and Silver
State Government Relations for lobbying and government affairs services during the Nevada
legislative interim and general sessions for $6,500 per month effective July 1, 2024, through
December 31, 2024, and $10,000 per month effective January 1, 2025, through June 30,
2025. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

32. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible authorization for
the County Manager to sign and approve a contract from 01/07/25 through 12/31/25 between



Storey County and Sam Shad Productions producing and airing with Nevada Newsmakers a 
series of television commercials, website banners and links, audio and video podcasts and 
YouTube clips, and social media outreach programs for a total cost of $200,000 as specified 
in the attached draft contract and scope of work, with an audience focus toward Nevada 
legislative officials and state, county, and municipal leadership.  

Mr. Osborne said Sam Shad Productions has been part of our overall lobbying team. It is 
consistent what we have done in past years. This is in accordance with the Strategic Plan and 
is budgeted. 

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve to authorize the County Manager to 
sign and approve a contract from 01/07/25 through 12/31/25 between Storey County and 
Sam Shad Productions producing and airing with Nevada Newsmakers a series of television 
commercials, website banners and links, audio and video podcasts and YouTube clips, and 
social media outreach programs for a total cost of $200,000 as specified in the attached draft 
contract and scope of work, with an audience focus toward Nevada legislative officials and 
state, county, and local leadership. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed 
unanimously. 

33. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Possible approval amending the list of county
appointments to serve on state, county, and regional boards and committees, and filling
vacancies on the Virginia City Tourism Commission for the 2025 calendar year.

Mr. Osborne said these are the appointments for the next calendar year, but changes can
come in the next. The VCTC position has created a one-year vacancies, so we will renew the
applicant, Gretchen Lavach. Our lobbyist representation should include Commissioner
Gilman as well as Commissioners Carmona and Mitchell. He said they would work to ensure
no Open Meeting Laws are violated. Another change is to the Carson Subconservancy Water
Board, in which Jim Hindle is the first representative and Lee Sterrett is the second. The full
list is in the Commissioner’s Packet on the Storey County website under Agendas.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the list of appointments recommended
by staff in the enclosure herewith to serve on state, county, and regional boards and
committees, and the Virginia City Tourism Commission, for the 2025 calendar year, with the
mentioned modifications listing both Jim Hindle and Lee Sterrett as representatives to the
Carson Water Subconservancy District with no alternate assigned and adding Commissioner
Gilman as well as a legislative representative. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion
passed unanimously.



34. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration of letters of interest for
appointment of a planning commissioner to serve a term representing Precincts 3 & 6
Lockwood and River Districts, on the Storey County Planning Commission.

Planning Manager Kathy Canfield said we have an opening in this area. James Umbach,
whose term is ending Dec. 31. He will fill the rest of Commissioner Gilman’s term that he
had left, and move from an at-large position to represent the River District.

Public Comment: None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I, Commissioner Mitchell, move
to appoint James Umbach to represent Precincts 3 & 6 Lockwood and River Districts on the
Storey County Planning Commission.: Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed
unanimously.

35. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration of letters of interest for
appointment of a planning commissioner to serve a term representing Precinct 5 Virginia City
Highlands District, on the Storey County Planning Commission.

Ms. Canfield said Carlos Negrete had been filling this position, and he would like to continue
in this position for the four-year term.

Public Comment: None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I, Commissioner Mitchell, move
to appoint Carlos Negrete to represent Precinct 5 Virginia City Highlands District on the
Storey County Planning Commission. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed
unanimously.

36. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration of letters of interest for the
appointment of a planning commissioner to serve a term representing Precinct 1 Virginia City
District, on the Storey County Planning Commission.

Ms. Canfield said Alexia Sober, whose term is expired, expressed a desire to continue in this
position.

Public Comment: None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I, Commissioner Mitchell, move
to appoint Alexia Sober to represent Precinct 1 Virginia City District and on the Storey
County Planning Commission. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed
unanimously.



37. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration of letters of interest for
appointment of a planning commissioner to serve the remainder of a term for County At
Large position on the Storey County Planning Commission.

Ms. Canfield said this position is for a three-year term. We received three letters of interest.
We recommend Rachel Holderread of Mark Twain for this position.

Commissioner Mitchell asked about staggering of terms. Ms. Canfield said there are three
staggered. She said it was unusual to have five terms available at once.

Public Comment: None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I, Commissioner Mitchell, move
to appoint Rachel Holderread to fulfill the term of County At Large position on the Storey
County Planning Commission. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed
unanimously.

38. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration of letters of interest for
appointment of a planning commissioner to serve a term representing the County At Large
position on the Storey County Planning Commission.

Ms. Canfield said this was a four-year term for an at-large position. Staff are recommending
the appointment of Kristen Brown of the Virginia City Highlands.

Public Comment: None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I, Commissioner Mitchell, move
to appoint Kristen Brown to represent the County At Large position on the Storey County
Planning Commission. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

39. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: For consideration and possible approval of
business license second readings:

A. A.C. Moate Industries, Inc – Contractor / 180 Gentry Way ~ Reno, NV 
B. ARCO DB Companies, Inc. - Contractor / 325 S. Alabama St. Ste 200 ~ Indianapolis, IN
C. Bighorn Roofing LTD – Contractor / 2090 Rabbit Dr. ~ Washoe Valley, NV
D. Budget Blinds of Reno – Out of County / 6550 Longley Ln. #115 ~ Reno, NV
E. Deluxe Step and Rail Inc. – Contractor / 1995 Tampa St. ~ Reno, NV
F. Diamond G Construction Inc. – Contractor / 340 W. Wickenburg Way Ste. A34 ~

Wickenburg, AZ
G. Highline Electric LLC – Contractor / 8030 Monterey Shores Dr. ~ Reno, NV
H. Mason Valley Janitorial – Out of County / 8 Van Fleet Dr. ~ Yerington, NV
I. NGK Electronics USA, Inc. – Out of County / 5975 Home Gardens Dr. ~ Reno, NV
J. Precision Firearms Training – Home Based / 4682 Hanaupah Rd. ~ Reno, NV



K. Pure Water Systems of NV – Contractor / 245 Vine St. ~ Reno, NV
L. SOKAB LLC – Home Based / 1700 Main St. ~ Gold Hill, NV
M. WSP USA INC – Professional / 4139Oregon Pike ~ Ephrata, PA

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the second readings of business licenses 
under Item #39 listed as A-M. Seconded by: Donald Gilman. Vote: Motion passed 
unanimously. 

40. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action):

41. ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA
Commissioner Carmona adjourned the meeting at 11:53 a.m.

Respectfully submitted, 

____________________________________________ 
Jim Hindle 
Clerk-Treasurer 



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0-5

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

• Title: For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
• A. Cosco Fire Protection Inc. – Contractor / 3620 West Reno Ave, #K ~ Las Vegas, NV
• B. Empire Southwest LLC– Out of County / 3300 St Rose Pkwy ~ Henderson, NV
• C. Inside Out Construction LLC – Contractor / 1940 Currant Ct. ~ Gardnerville, NV
• D. M.A. Mortenson Company – Contractor / 700 Meadow Ln. North ~ Minneapolis,

MN
• E. Reed’s Garage – General / 351 N. C St. ~ Virginia City, NV
• F. Staffing Technical Services Inc. – Out of County / 528 W. Roosevelt Rd. Ste. 101 ~

Wheaton, IL

• Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) I
move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

• Prepared by: Ashley Mead

Department: Community Development     Contact Number: 7758470966

• Staff Summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioner's meeting for approval.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

      7  I



[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County Community Development 

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide (775) 847-0966  ~  Fax (775) 847-0935
P O Box 526  ~  Virginia City NV 89440 CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org 

To: Jim Hindle, Clerk’s office January 27, 2025 

Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email 

Fr: Ashley Mead 

Please add the following item(s) to the February 04, 2025 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda: 

FIRST READINGS: 

A. Cosco Fire Protection Inc. – Contractor / 3620 West Reno Ave, #K ~ Las Vegas, NV

B. Empire Southwest LLC– Out of County / 3300 St Rose Pkwy ~ Henderson, NV

C. Inside Out Construction LLC – Contractor / 1940 Currant Ct. ~ Gardnerville, NV

D. M.A. Mortenson Company – Contractor / 700 Meadow Ln. North ~ Minneapolis, MN

E. Reed’s Garage – General / 351 N. C St. ~ Virginia City, NV

F. Staffing Technical Services Inc. – Out of County / 528 W. Roosevelt Rd. Ste. 101 ~ Wheaton, IL

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office 

       Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office  



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0 min

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

• Title: Approval of claims in the amount of $6,231,231.49.

• Recommended motion: Approval fo claims as submitted.

• Prepared by: Cory Y Wood

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: Please find attached claims.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

      7  II







































































Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 15 mins

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval for the County Manager to sign and enter into
a contract with Actalent for the provision of temporary construction staffing services to
help meet project deadlines not to exceed $165,000.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) move to approve the County Manager to sign
and enter into a contract with Actalent for the provision of temporary construction
staffing services to help meet project deadlines not to exceed $165,000.

• Prepared by: Brandie Lopez

Department: HR     Contact Number: 775-847-0968

• Staff Summary: In order to meet the demands, we are currently facing with our existing
contracts and grants, it is essential to establish a reliable partnership with a staffing
agency specializing in construction labor. Actalent, a well-established agency with
expertise in providing skilled construction workers, offers a broad range of qualified
candidates to support our ongoing and upcoming projects.

• Actalent specializes in supplying temporary labor for a variety of construction roles,
including Project Management. This partnership will give us the flexibility to meet
project demands without the long-term commitment of hiring permanent staff, ensuring
that we can adjust our workforce as needed to meet fluctuating project schedules and
requirements.

• The proposed contract will ensure that we have access to qualified personnel on a
flexible, temporary basis to assist with our project needs, especially during these peak
times.

• Terms of the Agreement:
• • Length of contract: Initial term of two years and shall continue on a month-to-

month basis.
• • Scope of services: Temporary staffing for Project Manager
• • Rates: Bill Rate of $76.50 hourly which includes:
• o $45 per hour plus
• o Workers Comp and Liability
• o Employer Taxes
• o Unemployment Costs
• o 401k
• o Health Benefits

       10



• o Holidays Pay (10 Holidays) and Vacation Pay (40 hours) 
• o You can convert the consultant at any time to go direct within 12 months and I 

will pro-rate the fee based off a 25% direct placement fee
• o After 12 months you can convert the consultant for no additional cost (or 

conversion fee) or you can keep them on as a consultant for as long as you need
• o You can end the consultant assignment at any time for any reason
•
• • Payment terms: Weekly invoicing for number of hours consultant worked.
• • Responsibilities: Actalent will provide candidates, ensure proper training, and handle all

recruitment and payroll processes. Our organization will supervise workers and ensure
compliance with safety standards.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: $160,000

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



7301 Parkway Drive South, Hanover, MD 21076  410.694.5100 Phone  actalentservices.com  An Allegis Group Company 

ADDENDUM 

This ADDENDUM made on this 17th day of January, 2025, as part of the Contract Talent Services Agreement (“Agreement”) made on 
the 17th day of October, 2024by and between Actalent, Inc. (“ACTALENT”) and Storey County (“Client”).  If there is any conflict 
between the agreement and this Addendum, this Addendum will control. 

ACTALENT agrees that approved Consultant(s) may be required to operate a motor vehicle that can be legally driven with only a valid 
standard non-commercial driver’s license.  ACTALENT hereby agrees, in writing, that minimal driving is authorized Client agrees to 
review approved Consultant(s) driving record (Department of Motor Vehicle Report) before allowing approved Consultant(s) to operate 
any of Client’s vehicles, either owned or non-owned. Client agrees that failure to restrict ACTALENT Consultants from the operation of 
vehicles requiring a Commercial Drivers License (CDL) or the allowance thereof; negates this Addendum and would be considered a 
breach of the original Agreement. This Addendum does not permit the unsupervised delivery of goods or products as the primary job 
function of ACTALENT Consultant.  

Client further understands that ACTALENT does not provide automobile insurance coverage for Client’s vehicle(s), approved 
Consultant(s) personal vehicle(s) that are used in conjunction with any job specifications of driving for Client, or if the motor vehicle(s) 
are used in any other capacity for Client. Client agrees to have Consultant(s) listed on Client’s automobile insurance policy as an 
additional insured. Client will indemnify, defend, and hold harmless ACTALENT, it’s owners, directors, and affiliates, from any claims, 
costs, expenses (including reasonable attorney fees), damages, obligations or losses arising from or resulting from approved Consultant(s) 
operation of a motor vehicle(s), either owned or non-owned, as part of the approved Consultant(s) assignment for the Client including 
third party liabilities arising from or resulting from such operation of a motor vehicle(s). 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement, under seal, the day and year first above written. 

AGREED AND ACCEPTED: 

ACTALENT INC. Client: Storey County 

_________________________ _________________________ 
Actalent Representative Name   Client Representative Name  

_________________________ _________________________ 
Actalent Representative Signature   Client Representative Signature 

_________________________ _________________________ 
Date  Date 



Actalent, Inc. (5/10/2023) 7301 Parkway Drive South  Hanover, MD 21076 Page 1 of 6 

CONTRACT TALENT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS CONTRACT TALENT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(“Agreement”) is made this 17th day of October, 2024, by and 
between Actalent, Inc., a Maryland corporation, (“Actalent”), and 
Storey County (“Client”). 

BACKGROUND 

Actalent is engaged in the supplemental contract talent service 
business providing contract talent to clients with personnel needs. 
Client desires to engage Actalent to provide contract talent and 
Actalent desires to be engaged by Client, all on the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual 
promises contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 

1. TERM: This Agreement shall commence on the date this
Agreement is executed by all parties, and continue for an initial term
of two (2) years, and shall continue thereafter on a month-to-month
basis, unless earlier terminated as provided herein. This Agreement
may be terminated by either party upon (60) days prior written
notice.

2. CONSULTANT
2.1. CONSULTANT DEFINED: As used throughout this
Agreement, the term “Consultant” means an Actalent contract talent
personnel placed to perform work for the Client pursuant to this
Agreement.

2.2. SERVICES: Actalent shall provide to Client one or more 
Consultants as requested by Client from time to time. Such 
Consultants shall perform work under Client’s management and 
supervision at a facility or in an environment controlled by Client. 
Attached hereto as Exhibit A, is a list of the names of the 
Consultants to be placed initially with Client, standard and overtime 
hourly billing rates for each Consultant, and the starting date for 
each Consultant. Unless otherwise agreed by the parties, this 
Agreement shall apply to additional Consultants provided by 
Actalent as requested by Client hereunder from time to time. Should 
Client request additional services subsequent to the execution of 
this Agreement, and such services are not listed on Exhibit A 
attached hereto, or should either Client or Actalent request changes 
to hourly billing rates or other terms for any Consultant working 
under the terms of this Agreement, any such additions or changes 
will be mutually agreed to in writing by both parties. Such agreed 
upon terms shall become a part of this Agreement, as amended. 

2.3. DUTIES: It shall be the Client’s responsibility to control, 
manage and supervise the work of the Consultants assigned to 
Client pursuant to this Agreement. Client agrees to provide site 
specific training to Consultants. The Consultants shall perform only 
the duties and functions of the specific jobs set forth opposite the 
Consultant’s name on Exhibit A or on the job description attached to 
this Agreement. In no event shall any Consultant be assigned or 
permitted to perform any other duties or functions other than those 
specified in Exhibit A for Client without the express written consent 
of Actalent. Should Client assign the Consultant to perform the 
duties or functions of a position not listed in Exhibit A or within the 
job description attached hereto, Actalent may, in its sole and 
absolute discretion, deem this Agreement breached by Client and 
take whatever action it deems necessary or appropriate. In this 
event, Client shall be liable to Actalent, and defend, indemnify and 
hold Actalent harmless for all claims, damages, losses or expenses 
relating to such breach, as well as all hours worked by the 
Consultants. 

2.4. CASH HANDLING: Client agrees that it will not permit any 
Consultant to (i) handle cash, negotiable instruments or other 
valuables without Actalent’s written consent (and then only under 

Client’s direct supervision), or (ii) transport or convey money, 
securities or negotiable instruments for Client (including, but not 
limited to, delivering bank deposits to a bank or other institution). 

2.5. MOTOR VEHICLES: Consultants are not authorized to 
operate a motor vehicle without Actalent’s prior written permission. 
Client shall not request or require Consultants to perform tasks which 
require driving a motor vehicle without Actalent expressed written 
permission. 

2.6. INTERNATIONAL TRAVEL: Consultants are not authorized 
to travel internationally without Actalent’s prior written permission. 
Client shall not request or require Consultants to perform tasks which 
require international travel without Actalent’s prior written permission. 

3. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS: With respect to
the services provided by Actalent, Actalent shall be an independent
contractor. Actalent shall provide any salary or other benefits to such
Consultants; will make all appropriate tax, social security, Medicare
and other withholding deductions and payments; will provide worker’s
compensation insurance coverage for its Consultants; and will make
all appropriate unemployment tax payments.

4. TIME RECORDS AND INVOICES: 
Actalent Time and Expense shall be the official time record for 
purposes of payment herein. Actalent shall submit weekly invoices to 
Client for services rendered by Consultants for the number of hours 
worked by Consultants billed at the rates listed on Exhibit A, in 
addition to all applicable sales and other tax, or as otherwise agreed 
by both parties. Hours shall be billed at the overtime rate when 
Consultants works in excess of forty (40) hour per week, or is 
otherwise entitled by law to overtime compensation. All paid vacation 
and holiday hours offered to Consultants by request of Client shall be 
billed to Client at the Standard Billing rates as listed in the Exhibit A. 
The number of hours billed by Actalent shall be supported by a time 
card or other time record approved by a representative of the Client. 
Client is solely responsible for ensuring that information submitted to 
Actalent regarding hours worked by Consultants is timely and 
accurate. Client agrees to be billed for all accrued hours of sick leave 
that Actalent is required by law to pay its Consultants while on 
assignment with Client. In the event Client or Client’s Representative 
fail to timely or accurately affirm the hours worked by Consultants or 
provide adequate systems or reporting to account for all hours, Client 
shall be liable to Actalent, and shall defend, indemnify and hold 
Actalent harmless for all claims, damages, losses or expenses 
relating to such breach, as well as all hours worked by the 
Consultants. Invoices submitted by Actalent to Client are presumed 
to be accurate and fully payable on the terms contained therein unless 
disputed by Client, in writing to the point of contact listed on the 
invoice, within five (5) business days of Client’s receipt of the invoice. 

5. PAYMENT DEFAULT: Payment in full for invoices via check
or EFT shall be due within fifteen (15) days from invoice date, at
Actalent, 3689 Collection Ctr. Dr., Chicago, Illinois 60693. Invoices
that are more than seven (7) days past due are subject to a late
charge of one percent (1%) per month on the amount of the past due
balance. Late charges shall be calculated using the U.S. Method,
therefore interest will not be compounded on the past due balance. If
the Client’s account is past due or Client has exceeded Actalent’s
established credit limit, Actalent shall notify Client verbally or in writing
of such occurrence. Upon such notice, Actalent may, without
additional notice, immediately cease providing any and all further
Consultants without any liability to Client for interruption or stoppage
of pending work. In addition, the parties agree that in the ordinary
course of business Actalent may, in its sole discretion, apply
payments made by Client to any outstanding Client invoice,
notwithstanding any direction by Client regarding application of the
payment. In the event that there are subsidiaries and/or affiliates of
Client that are subject to the terms of this Agreement, and those
subsidiaries and/or affiliates become delinquent or are unable to pay



Actalent, Inc. (5/10/2023) 7301 Parkway Drive South  Hanover, MD 21076 Page 2 of 6 

Actalent according to the terms contained herein, Client shall be liable 
to Actalent for payment of any and all outstanding invoices owed by 
the subsidiaries and/or affiliates. 

6. EXPENSES: Client shall reimburse Actalent for all ordinary,
necessary, and reasonable travel expenses incurred by Consultants
while performing work for Client that require Consultants to travel
away from Client’s primary job site. Client agrees to accept legible
copies of receipts (or electronic copies, if billed electronically) as the
supporting documentation needed to pay the expense amount on the
invoice.

7. COLLECTION: If the Client’s account, after default, is referred
to an attorney or collection agency for collection, Client shall pay all of
Actalent’s expenses incurred in such collection efforts including, but
not limited to, collection agency fees, court costs and reasonable
attorneys’ fees.  Notwithstanding the terms of Section
15.3 of this Agreement Actalent may institute proceedings to seek a
default judgment in any court of competent jurisdiction in the United
States.

8. BANKRUPTCY: Client agrees that in the event Client files
bankruptcy, (i) to the extent Actalent pays the salary and other direct
labor costs of the Consultants it provides to Client and such amounts
incurred within one hundred and eighty (180) days prior to bankruptcy
are not paid by Client to Actalent prior to bankruptcy, and/or (ii)
Actalent is the assignee of claims held by such Consultants against
Client for such amounts incurred within one hundred and eighty (180)
days prior to bankruptcy and such amounts are not paid by Client to
Actalent prior to bankruptcy, then Actalent has a claim against Client
in bankruptcy for the amount of such salary and other direct labor
costs which is entitled to a priority under 11 U.S.C. § 507(a)(4).

9. FUNDING LIMITS: Payment of Actalent invoices shall not be
dependent upon a Client generated purchase order, other funding
limit document or any internal Client funding process (collectively a
"PO"). If a PO is applicable pursuant to this Section, Client shall
deliver to Actalent a written PO before the Consultant’s start date
with Client. As stated in Section 15.22 herein, this Agreement and
Exhibits constitute the entire agreement between the parties. If
there is any inconsistency or conflicting terms between this
Agreement and a Client PO, this Agreement shall prevail. If a PO is
applicable pursuant to this paragraph, failure by Client to deliver or
appropriately fund said PO shall not release Client of its obligations
contained in this Agreement.

10. EXPORT CONTROL: Client agrees that it will adhere to all
applicable export controls including but not limited to the
International Traffic and Arms Regulations (ITAR), the Export
Administration Regulations (EAR), and all regulations and orders
administered by the Office of Foreign Asset Control of the U.S.
Department of Treasury. Client further assumes responsibility for
Consultant’s actions with regard to any transfer of export controlled
articles to include technical data, and defense services while acting
within the scope of work under this contract, to include the
procurement of any licenses required under the ITAR or EAR. Client
is responsible for promptly identifying in writing for Actalent positions
that require access to export controlled data or require Actalent
Consultants to participate in the export of controlled information and
technologies to foreign persons. Upon notification of applicable
export controls, Actalent will certify that Consultants placed in those
positions are U.S. persons.

11. RESTRICTIVE COVENANT
11.1 NON-SOLICITATION: Actalent is not an employment
agency. Its services are provided at great expense to Actalent. In
consideration thereof, during the term of this Agreement and for the
twelve (12) month period immediately following the period for which
Consultant last performed work for the Client under this Agreement,
Client shall not, directly or indirectly, for itself, or on behalf of any

other person, firm, corporation or other entity, whether as principal, 
agent, employee, stockholder, partner, member, officer, director, 
sole proprietor, or otherwise, solicit, participate in or promote the 
solicitation of such Consultant to leave the employ of Actalent, or 
hire or engage such Consultant. If any Consultant provided by 
Actalent to Client is engaged by Client to perform work, either 
directly or indirectly, within twelve (12) months of that Consultant’s 
last day of work at Client through Actalent, the Client will pay 
Actalent, as liquidated damages, an amount equal to 30% of the 
Consultant’s first year salary, including bonuses, with Client. 

11.2 RIGHT TO HIRE: Notwithstanding, the above Section 
11.1, if Consultant has completed the minimum assignment duration 
at Client for Actalent (the “Right to Hire Duration”), pursuant to 
Exhibit A, there will be no fee for directly hiring the Consultant. If 
Consultant has not completed the Right to Hire Duration, Client 
agrees to pay the fee outlined in Section 11.1. 

11.3 ACCOUNT STATUS: Notwithstanding the above Section 
11.2, if Client’s account is not current or in good standing, or is in 
breach of Section 5 of this agreement, Client may not hire the 
Consultant, even though the Consultant may have completed the 
Right to Hire Duration. If Client hires Consultant while Client’s 
account is not in good standing or while Client is in breach of Section 
5 of this Agreement, Actalent may deem this Agreement breached 
and take whatever action it deems necessary or appropriate, 
including, but not limited to, assessing reasonable financial 
penalties against Client. 

12. SUBMITTALS
12.1. RIGHT TO HIRE: Resumes submitted to Client are
confidential and for Client use only. Client agrees that Actalent is
the exclusive representative of all candidates for which resumes are
submitted to Client by Actalent in response to Client requests.
Accordingly, Client agrees that if any candidate submitted to Client
by Actalent is solicited and engaged to perform work, either directly
or indirectly, by Client within twelve (12) months of receipt of the
resume, Client agrees to pay to Actalent, as liquidated damages an
amount equal to 30% of the employee’s first year annual salary,
including bonuses.

12.2. CONSULTANT PERFORMANCE: Within the initial 
employment guarantee period as detailed in the attached Exhibit A 
from any Consultant’s starting date, Client shall review the 
Consultant’s performance and decide whether to continue the 
engagement of such Consultant. If Client is dissatisfied with the 
performance of Consultant, and Client wishes Actalent to terminate 
its engagement of such Consultant, Client must notify Actalent 
within the initial period, specifying the reasons for its dissatisfaction, 
and Client shall not be required to pay for the hours worked by that 
Consultant during the initial period, provided its reasons for 
termination are not unlawful and are bona fide in Actalent 
reasonable judgment. If Client becomes dissatisfied with the 
performance of a Consultant after the initial period, Client may 
request that Actalent terminate the engagement of that Consultant 
upon written notice to Actalent, but Client shall pay for all hours 
worked by the terminated Consultant from the first hour of work up 
to and including the date of termination. 

12.3. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: Actalent does not warrant or 
guarantee that the Consultants placed pursuant to this Agreement will 
produce any particular result or any solution to Client’s particular 
needs, or perform services in any particular manner. Accordingly, 
Client acknowledges and agrees that Actalent is not responsible for 
any aspects of the Consultant’s work or the Client’s project, including, 
without limitation, any deadlines or work product. Because Actalent 
is providing contract talent services only, and Client is directing and 
supervising the Consultants who perform the work for Client, Actalent 
shall not be liable (i) for any claims, costs, expenses, damages, 
obligations or losses arising from or in connection with the acts or 
omission of any Consultant, including, but not limited to, work on 



Actalent, Inc. (5/10/2023) 7301 Parkway Drive South  Hanover, MD 21076 Page 3 of 6 

engineering or design concepts or calculations or related drawings, 
software programs, designs or documentation, or (ii) for any indirect, 
special or consequential damages (including, but not limited to, loss 
of profits, interest, earnings or use) whether arising in contract, tort or 
otherwise. Client shall defend, indemnify and hold Actalent harmless 
against and from any such claims made or brought by third parties, 
including any and all costs incurred in connection with such claims. 

13. CLIENT PROPERTY
13.1. WORK PRODUCT: All work product of every kind performed
by any Consultant on behalf of Client shall be the sole and exclusive
property of Client.

13.2. DAMAGES: Actalent does not provide insurance coverage for 
any real or personal property of Client, including but not limited to 
machinery, equipment, computers, tools, vehicles or other real or 
personal property which is owned or leased by Client. Accordingly, 
Client agrees that in the event it supplies, provides or otherwise allows 
Consultants to use or have access to any property of Client, (including 
but not limited to cell phones, laptop computers, tools, etc.), Client 
shall be solely responsible for any damage, theft, repair or loss 
associated with this property, and Client shall defend, indemnify and 
hold Actalent harmless against and from such claims made or brought 
for any damaged, stolen, or lost property of Client. 

13.3. CONFIDENTIALITY: Actalent recognizes that while 
performing its duties under this Agreement, Actalent and its 
Consultants may be granted access to certain proprietary and 
confidential information regarding Client’s business, customers, and 
employees. Actalent agrees to keep such information confidential and 
the obligations of this paragraph will survive the termination of this 
Agreement. This paragraph does not apply to information that was 
previously known or information that is available in the public domain. 

14. NOTICES
14.1. MANNER: Any notice or other communication (“Notice”)
required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and
either delivered personally or sent by email, overnight delivery,
express mail, or certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return
receipt requested.

14.2. ADDRESSEE: A Notice shall be addressed, in the case of 
Actalent, to Contracts Department at: 7301 Parkway Dr. South 
Hanover, MD 21076 or, in the case of Client, to , at  . If 
sent by email, a Notice shall be sent to Actalent at 
ContractNotices@actalentservices.com or to Client at  . 

14.3. DELIVERY: A Notice delivered personally shall be deemed 
given only if acknowledged in writing by the person to whom it is 
given. A Notice sent by email shall be deemed given when receipt 
of such Notice is given, or where no read receipt is requested by the 
sender, at the time of sending, provided that no delivery failure 
notification is received by the sender within forty-eight (48) hours of 
sending such Notice. A Notice sent by overnight delivery or express 
mail shall be deemed given twenty-four (24) hours after having been 
sent. A Notice that is sent by certified mail or registered mail shall 
be deemed given forty-eight (48) hours after it is mailed. If any time 
period in this Agreement commences upon the delivery of Notice to 
any one or more parties, the time period shall commence only when 
all of the required Notices have been deemed given. 

14.4. CHANGES: Either party may designate, by Notice to the 
other, substitute addressees or addresses for Notices, and 
thereafter, Notices are to be directed to those substitute addresses. 

15. MISCELLANEOUS
15.1. WAIVER: Failure to insist upon strict compliance with any of
the terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement shall not be
deemed a waiver of that term, covenant or condition or of any other
term, covenant or condition of this Agreement. Any waiver or
relinquishment of any right or power hereunder at any one or more

times shall not be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of that right or 
power at any other time. 

15.2. REMEDIES CUMULATIVE: The remedies set forth in this 
Agreement are cumulative and are in addition to any other remedies 
allowed at law or in equity. Resort to one form of remedy shall not 
constitute a waiver of alternate remedies. 

15.3. ARBITRATION: Except as provided in Section 7 of this 
Agreement and subject to prior internal mediation between 
representatives of the parties, all disputes, controversies or 
differences arising in connection with the validity, execution, 
performance, breach, non- renewal or termination of this Agreement 
shall be finally settled in an arbitration proceeding under the Rules of 
the American Arbitration Association by three arbitrators in 
accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules then in effect of the 
American Arbitration Association. Selection of the arbitrators shall be 
as follows: each party shall appoint one arbitrator within twenty (20) 
days after the parties have agreed to go to arbitration, and those two 
arbitrators shall appoint a third arbitrator who shall act as chairman, 
within a twenty 
(20) day period thereafter. If the parties fail to appoint the chairman
within said period, the parties will apply to the American Arbitration
Association for appointment of the third arbitrator. The parties agree
to be bound by the findings of the arbitration. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the courts shall have jurisdiction over injunctive or
provisional relief pending arbitration. The arbitrators shall not be
empowered to award punitive damages to any party. The non- 
prevailing party to the arbitration shall pay all the prevailing party’s
expenses of the arbitration, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and
other costs and expenses incurred in connection with the prosecution
or defense of such arbitration.

15.4. DRUG & BACKGROUND SCREENING: If Client requires 
Actalent to perform certain drug and/or background screenings on its 
candidate(s) and/or Consultants, the appropriate Exhibit B(s) should 
be completed by Client and signed by both Client and Actalent. These 
screenings will be performed at Client’s sole expense unless 
otherwise agreed to in writing by both parties. 

15.5. ASSIGNMENT: No party shall transfer or assign any or all of 
its rights or interests under this Agreement or delegate any of its 
obligations without the prior written consent of the other party; 
provided, however, that Actalent may transfer or assign its rights or 
interests, or delegate its obligations, under this Agreement to any 
parent, subsidiary or affiliate without the prior written consent of Client. 

15.6. COMPLIANCE: Client agrees that it will comply with 
applicable federal, state, and local laws in connection with the 
services provided by Actalent hereunder, including but not limited to 
the following: 

15.7. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY: Actalent is an equal opportunity 
employer and refers Consultants regardless of race, sex, color, 
religion, creed, ancestry, national origin, disability, age, marital 
status or other protected class status pursuant to applicable law. 
Client agrees and warrants that it will not reject Consultants, or 
otherwise deem Consultants unacceptable, or take any other action 
for any reason prohibited by federal, state or local laws including, 
but not limited to, laws pertaining to employment discrimination or 
employee safety. Client will defend, indemnify and hold Actalent 
harmless with respect to any and all claims that Client took action in 
violation of federal, state, and/or local laws, including costs of suit, 
settlement and attorneys’ fees. 

15.8. GOVERNMENT CONTRACTING – NOTIFICATION AND 
WAGE DETERMINATION: Client represents and warrants that the 
work to be performed by Consultants are not (i) supporting a 
contract for the United States, State or Local Government; or (ii) 
subject to any federal, state, or local prevailing wage determination, 
including but not limited to, the Service Contract Act of 1965, Davis- 
Bacon  Act,  or  Walsh-Healey  Public  Contract  Act.  Client 



Actalent, Inc. (5/10/2023) 7301 Parkway Drive South  Hanover, MD 21076 Page 4 of 6 

acknowledges and agrees that Client is responsible for (i) prior 
notification to Actalent of any and all projects that support a contract 
with the United States, State or Local Government, and (ii) the 
accuracy of any applicable prevailing wage determinations and flow 
down provisions. If it is later determined that such work performed 
by Consultants were in support of a United States, State or Local 
Government contract, Client agrees to defend, indemnify and hold 
Actalent harmless for any claims, costs or fees which (i) Actalent 
may incur from any misclassification related to such determination; 
and (ii) result from any inaccuracy of the Client provided wage 
determination including, but not limited to, the failure to notify 
Actalent that the work performed by Consultants are or were 
required to be paid at a prevailing wage. Should Client fail to notify 
Actalent of an applicable prevailing wage or provide accurate wage 
determinations, Actalent reserves the right to bill Client the 
difference in the rate for all hours worked plus any statutory or 
regulatory costs associated with such rate difference. Further, 
Actalent will charge a ten percent (10%) fee, as liquidated damages 
for Client’s failure to notify Actalent that a prevailing wage applies, 
which will be calculated based on the total difference in the rate for 
all hours worked. 

15.9. AVIATION REGULATIONS: Client represents that none of 
the work to be performed by any Consultant will be FAA-regulated 
as a “SAFETY-SENSITIVE FUNCTION”. Client agrees to be solely 
responsible for making such determination(s), and Client agrees to 
defend, indemnify and hold Actalent harmless for any claims, costs 
or damages which may result from the Client’s breach of its 
obligations contained herein. 

15.10. HEALTH AND SAFETY:  Client shall provide a safe, clean 
work environment that complies with all applicable local, state and 
federal laws. Client agrees to train, certify, evaluate and orient all 
Consultants in all applicable safety (IIPP), hazardous communication 
(SDS information, etc.) ergonomic and operational instructions in the 
same manner as Client employees and as required by policy or by law, 
including but not limited to, all federal OSHA and equivalent state 
agency requirements, guidelines and standards. Client agrees to 
document Consultant site specific training, which documents the date 
and type of training conducted. The Client further agrees to promptly 
provide verification of site specific training upon Actalent’s request. 
Further, Client agrees to notify Actalent if any health and safety 
medical testing or medical surveillance will be required for 
Consultants. Client agrees to notify Actalent of any changes in 
occupational exposures that would require medical testing or medical 
surveillance. To the extent Consultant is obligated to meet site-specific 
training requirements in order for Client to comply with applicable site-
specific legal requirements, the Client shall provide Consultant with 
all necessary training before placing Consultant into the work 
environment and before allowing Consultant to commence the 
specific assignment. Client shall provide and require all Actalent 
Consultants to wear all appropriate safety equipment. Client will notify 
Actalent immediately in the event of an accident or medical treatment 
of any Consultant, and will provide a completed supervisor’s report of 
injury. Actalent may perform, if feasible, an inspection of the 
workplace to conduct its own hazard assessment or to ensure 
implementation of the Client’s safety and health obligations. Client 
agrees to provide the necessary and accurate information to complete 
this assessment. In the event of an accident or other incident 
involving Consultants, Actalent shall have the right to conduct an 
onsite investigation. Client shall cooperate with Actalent in the 
conduct of its investigation. Client will be responsible for all OSHA 
recordkeeping responsibilities required by law in the performance and 
execution of the terms of this agreement. Client shall defend, 
indemnify and hold Actalent harmless against and from any claims 
made or brought as a result of Client’s breach of its obligations 
contained in this paragraph. 

15.11. PROCESSING AND PROTECTION OF PERSONAL DATA: 
Client anticipates that all Client personal data that Actalent’s 
Consultants will process as part of the work belongs to residents of 

the United States, and Client will notify Actalent if this changes so the 
parties can determine if an amendment to this data processing and 
protection section is necessary. Actalent’s Consultants shall comply 
with applicable data protection law(s) and at all times process the 
Client personal data only for the purpose of providing the work to 
Client under this Agreement and for no other purposes. Further, 
Actalent’s Consultants are prohibited from: (i) selling the Client 
personal data or (ii) retaining, using or disclosing the Client personal 
data for any purpose other than performing the services. Under the 
CCPA, Actalent will act as a Service Provider with Client acting as a 
Business. Each party shall, taking into account the nature of the 
processing, reasonably cooperate with the other party to enable the 
other party to respond to requests, complaints and the exercise of 
data subject rights or other communications from data subjects or 
regulatory bodies related to the processing of Client personal data 
under this Agreement. As part of the services, Actalent, acting as a 
Business under the CCPA, will share with Client, acting as a Business 
under the CCPA, certain personal data about Consultants. The 
personal data will include, for example and without limitation, name, 
contact information, CV/resume information and other personal data 
necessary for Actalent to provide the services to Client (collectively 
the “Actalent Personal Data”). Client agrees that it shall process such 
Actalent Personal Data in compliance with applicable data protection 
laws, and at all times only for purposes related to receiving the 
services and is expressly prohibited from selling the Actalent Personal 
Data. Actalent is providing the Actalent Personal Data to Client at the 
request of Consultants and such disclosure is therefore not a “sale” of 
the Actalent Personal Data under CCPA. 

15.12. DATA SECURITY: The parties agree that Client is 
responsible for all organizational and technical measures to ensure 
compliance with applicable data protection laws in the customer 
work environment where Consultants are providing the work, 
including without limitation being responsible for policies, codes of 
practices and/or procedures, providing appropriate training to 
Actalent’s Consultants on Client data protection policies and 
procedures as needed, providing appropriate technical controls to 
computer systems, networks and devices issued by Client that may 
be used by Actalent’s Consultants and providing appropriate 
physical controls in facilities controlled by Client. Client 
acknowledges and agrees that it determines what Client personal 
data Actalent will have access to as part of the services. In the 
event a security incident occurs involving a Consultant assigned to 
Client under this Agreement, Client agrees to report the security 
incident to Actalent via the following link: 
https://infosec.allegisgroup.com. For example, and without 
limitation, this includes reporting as a security incident that Client 
equipment is lost or stolen, or any sensitive, proprietary or Client 
confidential information contained on the equipment is improperly 
transmitted or disclosed. 

15.13 REMOTE WORK NOTIFICATION: In the event Client 
requires Consultants to work remotely or work from any location 
other than the Client’s place of business for any consecutive period 
exceeding twenty-four (24) working hours (“Remote Work 
Arrangement”), Client will provide Actalent with advanced written 
notification of such change and obtain prior written approval from 
Actalent. If Client fails to provide Actalent with prior notice of the 
Remote Work Arrangement, Actalent may, in its sole and absolute 
discretion, deem this Agreement breached by the Client. In addition, 
Client shall be liable to Actalent and shall defend, indemnify and 
hold Actalent harmless for all claims, losses, expenses, liabilities 
(including reasonable attorney’s fees) to the extent caused by 
Client’s breach of the Agreement and/or its failure to notify Actalent 
that the work performed by Consultants were being completed 
pursuant to a Remote Work Arrangement, including, but not limited, 
the business expenses associated with working remotely and any 
security breach or data security incident associated with 
Consultants working remotely. 



Actalent, Inc. (5/10/2023) 7301 Parkway Drive South  Hanover, MD 21076 Page 5 of 6 

15.14. OTHER REQUIREMENTS: Client acknowledges and agrees 
that it shall be responsible for notifying Actalent of any other industry- 
specific law or regulation applicable to the services provided by 
Actalent prior to any Actalent employee providing any services. 

15.15. ANNUAL INFLATION ADJUSTMENT: Within the first sixty 
(60) days of every calendar year, Actalent reserves the right to adjust
established bill rates with Client by up to 3% to cover specific direct
cost increases. This bill rate adjustment will include any statutory,
employee benefit, or Consultant compensation increases. Actalent
will submit a revised Exhibit A reflecting the bill rate adjustment at the
effective date of change to the Client for documentation purposes. If
direct cost increases are greater than 3%, Actalent will secure a
revised Exhibit A with Client documenting the new agreed upon rates.
Any rate adjustment will be applicable on a go forward basis only.

15.16. GOVERNING LAW: The laws of the State of Nevada shall 
govern the validity and construction of this Agreement and any 
dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement, without regard to 
the principles of conflict of laws. 

15.17. SEVERABILITY: A ruling by any court that one or more of 
the provisions contained in this Agreement is invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable in any respect shall not affect any other provision of 
this Agreement so long as the economic or legal substance of the 
transactions contemplated hereby is not affected in any manner 
materially adverse to any party. Thereafter, this Agreement shall be 
construed as if the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had 
been amended as originally contemplated by this Agreement to the 
greatest extent possible. 

15.18. COUNTERPARTS: This Agreement may be executed 
simultaneously in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original. In that event, in providing this Agreement it shall 
not be necessary to produce or account for the counterpart signed by 
the party against whom the proof is being presented. 

15.19. HEADINGS: The section and subsection headings have been 
included for convenience only, are not part of this Agreement and 
shall not be taken as an interpretation of any provision of this 
Agreement. 

15.20. BINDING EFFECT: This Agreement shall be binding upon and 
shall inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, 
legatees, personal representatives and other legal representatives, 
successors and permitted assigns. Except as otherwise specifically 
provided, this Agreement is not intended and shall not be construed 
to confer upon or to give any person other than the parties any rights 
or remedies. 

15.21. AMENDMENTS  AND  MODIFICATIONS:  Except  for 
modifications to Exhibit A pursuant to Section 2 herein, this 
Agreement may be amended, waived, changed, modified or 
discharged only by an agreement in writing signed by all of the parties. 

15.22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement and Exhibits 
attached hereto constitutes the entire agreement between the parties, 
and there are no representations, warranties, covenants or 
obligations except as set forth in this Agreement. This Agreement 
supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, 
understandings, negotiations and discussions, written or oral, of the 
parties, relating to any transaction contemplated by this Agreement. 

 Actalent, Inc. 

By: 

Name: 

Title 

Date:  

Client: Storey County 

By: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

Brian Treadway
Assistant Controller

1/23/2025



Actalent, Inc. (5/10/2023) 7301 Parkway Drive South  Hanover, MD 21076 Page 6 of 6 

EXHIBIT A 

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Contract Talent Services Agreement (“Agreement”) dated 10/17/2024 by and between Actalent, Inc. (“Actalent”) and Storey County (“Client”),
Client agrees to reimburse Actalent in full at the following approved rates: 

Consultant Information 

Division Engineering 

Client Job Title/Consultant Name Project Manager 

Actalent Job Title Construction Project Manager 

Right to Hire Duration (Section 11.2) 12 months 

Guarantee Period (Section 12.2) 40 business hours 

Standard Billing Rates 

Straight Time Billing Rate ST X (1.68-1.80) = BR 

Overtime Billing Rate 1.5 X BR 

Double Time Billing Rate 

Additional Billing Rates 

Vacation Billing Rate (40 hours) ($)* INCLUDED 

Holiday Billing Rate (6 days) ($)* INCLUDED 

Drug Screening Rate ($)* INCLUDED 

Background Check Rate ($)* INCLUDED 

*Excluding applicable sales or other tax 
** Pursuant to section 15.15 of the Agreement, Actalent may adjust bill rates up to 3% within the first 60 days of every calendar year and will execute a revised Exhibit A with Client.

 AGREED AND ACCEPTED: 

Client : Storey County Actalent, Inc. 

By: By: 
(Signature) (Signature) 

(Name/Title) (Name/Title) 

(Date) (Date) 

Amber Brown / Account Manager

1/23/2025



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 Minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval to authorize the County Manager to approve
and sign a contract addendum between Storey County and Cintas Corporation No. 2,
doing business as Cintas First Aid & Safety, for an additional AED to be located at the
Storey County Community Development Office.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) move to authorize the County Manager to
approve and sign an addendum to the contract between Storey County and Cintas
Corporation No. 2, doing business as Cintas First Aid & Safety, to add an additional AED
to the contract to be placed in the Community Development Office. Under this contract,
Cintas will supply Storey County with Automatic External Defibrillators, along with
related products and services for an additional $126.00 per month.

• Prepared by: Lisa Maciel

Department: Commissioners     Contact Number: 775-847-0968

• Staff Summary: After a review of a prior AED list provided by public works, and in
consultation with Battalion Chief Morgan, it was advised to add an AED for the
Community Development building; this will be the 2nd addendum to the original
contract. The nearest AED is located at the Public Works building, approximately 150'
away creating a less than desirable scenario in an emergency. This AED will cost an
additional $126.00/month. The original contract was approved by the board on
10/01/2024 and the 1st addendums were approved on 11/05/2024. Total AEDs will then
be at (25) at a cost of $3,150.00/month or $37,800/year. (13) AEDs are allocated to
Storey County, (8) allocated to the Storey County School District, and (4) allocated to
Community Chest; the School District and Community Chest are responsible for the
payment of their respective AEDs.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

      11



____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



lmaciel@storeycounty.org

110 E. Toll Road Virginia City NV 89440
26 S. B Street Virginia City NV 89440

1 126

Type text hereStorey County Community Development











NOT AN INVOICE

Date:

Branch #:

Sold-To Name:

Sold-To Address:

City: St/Prov: ZIP/PC: Phone:

Contact Person: Email:

ZNAT/ZREG: Rep Name: C#:

Matrix Account:  YES  NO Matrix Partner Name: MAM Segment:

Service Frequency: Bundle Sold:  YES  NO Bundle Type:

PPE Required: Safety Glasses Ear Plugs Steel Toed Shoes Hard Hat Hi-Viz Vest No PPE Required Other:

QUANTITY MATERIAL # DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL

400 Service Charge

Customer Signature: Date:

Customer Name: Title:

INTERNAL USE ONLY
Sold-to # Change ID: Window Reset: YES  NO Rental Acct:  YES  NO 
Payer # Change ID: Y1:
Bill-to # Change ID: Install Route: Service Route:
# of Employees: DC:

herein may not be used, disclosed, distributed or reproduced for any purpose, without the prior written authorization of Cintas Corporation and those so authorized may only use the information 

Delivery/Installation Instructions:

I authorize Cintas to verify my credit on Credit.net and/or by contacting the parties provided. I am authorized to sign on behalf of this company. In addition, I 
authorize Cintas to open a new account on behalf of the company and deliver the products or services listed above at the agreed upon pricing and delivery terms.

I authorize Cintas to deliver the additional products or services listed on page 3 at the agreed upon pricing and delivery terms.

Page 1 of 3

10/11/2024

0169

Storey County - Community Development

110 E. Toll Rd

Virginia City NV 89440 (775) 291-4092

Brandie Lopez blopez@storeycounty.org

93000012922 - Storey County ZREG Mark Humphreys 1276305

SELECT ONE

4 Weeks

1 4003Z_Lease Zoll 3 AED Service Agreement $ 126.00 $ 126.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

1 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

$ 126.00



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and Possible approval of Grant of Easement file 2025-017 from
Storey County to NV Energy for Utility Facilities within the C Street Right-of-Way near
Flowery Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada to facilitate project development.

• Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I
[commissioner] move to approve Grant of Easement 2025-017 from Storey County to
NV Energy for Utility Facilities within the C Street Right-of-Way near Flowery Street,
Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada to facilitate project development.

• Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Planning     Contact Number: 775-847-1144

• Staff Summary: The Public Works Director has reviewed the easement and has no
concerns. 

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       12



















Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Discussion and possible approval of County staff regarding pending federal
appropriation requests for federal fiscal year 2025, and dependent on the passage of the
2025 federal fiscal year budget, federal appropriation proposals for federal fiscal year
2026.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) move to approve County staff to proceed with
submitting the 2026 federal appropriation requests for the Virginia City Public Safety
Complex, Silver City Water Main Line Replacement, Courthouse Earthquake Retrofit,
and the resubmission of the Historic Piper’s Opera House West Wall Restoration and A
Street Roadway Improvement, and, if a continuing resolution necessitates resubmission
of 2025 requests, to submit the Mobile Emergency Command Center, Divide Water Main
Replacement, the Historic Piper’s Opera House West Wall Restoration and A Street
Roadway Improvement, and the Virginia City Public Safety Complex.

• Prepared by: Sara Sturtz

Department: Business Development     Contact Number: 775-350-9473

• Staff Summary: Discussion, and possible approval from the Board regarding pending
federal appropriation requests for Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2025 and potential proposals
for FFY 2026, contingent on the passage of the FFY 2025 federal budget.

•
• The County submitted four requests for FFY 2025 federal appropriations:
• Divide Water Main Replacement ($1 million)
• Lockwood Flood Hazard Mitigation Plan ($3 million)
• Mobile Emergency Command Center ($250,000)
• Historic Piper’s Opera House West Wall Restoration and A Street Roadway

Improvement ($1 million)
• Of these, two projects, the Mobile Emergency Command Center and the Divide Water

Main Replacement, were included in the preliminary FY 2025 federal budget
•
• Current Status:
• There is currently no agreement on the final FFY 2025 federal budget. Congress has

passed a continuing resolution, extending funding at current levels until March 14, 2025.
Should Congress pass another continuing resolution beyond this date, it is unlikely that
the County’s two approved FFY 2025 appropriation requests will move forward. In such

       13



a scenario, the Board will need to determine whether to resubmit the FFY 2025 requests 
and/or propose new projects for consideration. If we have to resubmit our FFY 2025 
requests, County staff recommend submitting the Mobile Emergency Command Center, 
Divide Water Main Replacement, the Historic Piper’s Opera House west wall restoration 
and A Street roadway improvement, and the Virginia City Public Safety Complex. 

•
• If the final federal 2025 budget is approved, staff recommend the following projects for 

FFY 2026 federal appropriations:
• Virginia City Public Safety Complex
• Silver City Water Main Line Replacement
• Courthouse Earthquake Retrofit
• Resubmission of the Historic Piper’s Opera House West Wall Restoration and A Street

Roadway Improvement

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval to authorize Storey County Business
Development to reallocate an amount not to exceed $4,000 of budgeted and available
funds from the Professional Services account to host regional attendees at the National
Association of Counties annual Legislative conference.

• Recommended motion: I _(commissioner), move to approve the authorization for
Storey County Business Development to reallocate an amount not to exceed $4,000 of
budgeted and available funds from the Professional account to host regional attendees at
the National Association of Counties annual Legislative conference.

• Prepared by: Lara Mather

Department: Business Development     Contact Number: 7758470986

• Staff Summary: Lara Mather and Commissioner Clay Mitchell will attend the National
Association of Counties Legislative Conference this March in Washington, DC. Last
year, Storey County sponsored a Nevada Association of Counties dinner event with
elected officials from neighboring Nevada counties. Building on that success,
Commissioner Mitchell and Lara would like to sponsor the dinner event again this year.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

       14



[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval to authorize Storey County Business
Development to author and submit a letter supporting SB5 to make the Lieutenant
Governor’s Office of Small Business Advocacy (OSBA) a permanent fixture within the
Office of the Lieutenant Governor.

• Recommended motion: I _(commissioner), move to authorize Storey County Business
Development to author and submit a letter supporting SB5 to make the Lieutenant
Governor’s Office of Small Business Advocacy (OSBA) a permanent fixture within the
Office of the Lieutenant Governor.

• Prepared by: Lara Mather

Department: Business Development     Contact Number: 7758470986

• Staff Summary: The Nevada Lieutenant Governor’s Office of Small Business Advocacy
(OSBA) has reached out to communities requesting support by writing a statement of
support to make the OSBA a permanent office past the end of their funding cycle of June
30, 2025.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       15



In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of Agriculture policy, this institution is prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, 
national origin, sex, age, or disability. (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination, write USDA, Director, Office 

of Civil Rights, Room 326-W, Whitten Building, 1400 Independence Avenue, SW, Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call (202) 720-5964 (voice and 
TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider and employer. This institution is an equal opportunity provider.

Storey County Business Development
10 South “B” Street

P.O. Box 7 Virginia City, Nevada 89440
storeycounty.org
(775) 847-0986

February 4, 2025

REF: Statement in Support for the Lieutenant Governor’s Office of Small Business 
Advocacy

Greetings Chair and Committee Members:

Storey County supports SB5 to make the Lieutenant Governor’s Office of Small Business Advocacy 
(OSBA) a permanent fixture within the Office of the Lieutenant Governor.

The OSBA plays a critical role in strengthening Nevada's entrepreneurial infrastructure and fostering 
the growth and resilience of our small business community. Its collaborative efforts enhance the 
broader network of resources available to small businesses across the state.

A recent survey of Nevada small business owners highlighted recurring challenges: issues with the 
SilverFlume online portal, burdensome licensing and regulations, limited access to funding 
opportunities, and the inability to receive timely assistance for problems. The OSBA directly addresses 
these barriers, offering much-needed solutions.

Nevada’s entrepreneurs should not face excessive regulatory hurdles, high fees, and complex 
paperwork just to start or sustain their businesses. These challenges disproportionately impact 
immigrant, minority, and rural communities, creating significant obstacles to success.

The OSBA leads efforts to streamline business regulations, reduce licensing burdens, and improve 
government communication, making it faster, simpler, and more affordable to start and run a business 
in Nevada.

With small businesses comprising 99.2% of Nevada’s enterprises and employing 43% of the 
workforce—many in rural areas—it is vital to support this backbone of our economy. The OSBA helps 
ensure these businesses thrive, contributing to the vibrancy and diversity of our communities.

Storey County urges strong support for the OSBA and looks forward to continued collaboration with 
this invaluable resource.

Respectfully,

Lara Mather
Business Development



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Storey County FY25 2nd Quarter Financial Review.

• Recommended motion: Discussion Only.

• Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: At the mid-point of the fiscal year, Storey County General Fund
revenues are tracking at approximately 82% of the projections, slightly higher than the
80% collected at the same time last year.  Ad Valorem collections are at approximately
79% collected and are expected to level off in the third and fourth quarters.  Countywide
revenues are at approximately 65% collected, with most funds performing as anticipated.
General Fund expenditures are at approximately 42%, with Wages trending at
approximately 41% utilization and Benefits are trending at approximately 34%. All
General Fund Departments and most funds are trending at or below the expected 50%
utilization at the end of the second quarter.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       16



















Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: County Manager to provide a quarterly report to the board.

• Recommended motion: Discussion Only.

• Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: County Manager     Contact Number: 775.847.0968

• Staff Summary: Quarterly update.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       17



Storey County Water and Sewer Board
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval to purchase 3 new Laser Turbidimeters and 4
new SC4500 Controllers for the water filters at the Water Treatment Plant in the amount
of $32,281.35 with SCADA programming not to exceed $5,000 for a grand total of
$37,281.35.

• Recommended motion: I ( commissioner) approve the purchase of 3 new Laser
Turbidimeters and 4 new SC4500 Controllers for the water filters at the Water Treatment
Plant in the amount of $32,281.35 with SCADA programming not to exceed $5,000 for a
grand total of $37,281.35.

• Prepared by: Jason Wierzbicki

Department: Public Works     Contact Number: 7758470958

• Staff Summary: These Laser Turbidimeters measure the particulates in the water to
optimize water filter performance and chemical dosage along with disinfection. This is
unbudgeted but needed for the described filtration process to deliver the best quality of
water possible to the rate payers. The money that will be used is originally budgeted for
tank maintenance but, that project will not be kicking off until after July 1st.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: Yes, Budget Available

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

       19



[ ] Denied [ ] Continued















Storey County Water and Sewer Board
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Water-Sewer FY25 2nd Quarter Financial Review.

• Recommended motion: Discussion Only.

• Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: At the mid-point of the fiscal year the Water and Sewer Fund’s
revenues are tracking at approximately 50% of the projections. Expenses remain
conservative, with Water Fund expenditures at approximately 36% and the Sewer Fund
expenditures at approximately 39%.  Wages and Benefits have an average of 54%
collectively while Service and Supplies is at 50% for both funds.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

        20





Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 15

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Fire District FY25 2nd Quarter Financial Review.

• Recommended motion: Discussion Only.

• Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Comptroller     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: At the mid-point of the fiscal year the Fire District’s revenues are
trending at or above the 50% of the projections.  There are a few revenue categories that
are trending higher, for example, Ad Valorem; however, we expect these to level out
through the third and fourth quarters. The Fire General Expenses are also trending as
expected at or below the 50%.  Wages and Benefits have an average of 60% remaining,
while Service and Supplies is also at 60%. All other Fire District Funds are trending as
expected.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       22







Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval for policy P603 Sick Leave and policy P602
Annual Leave with modifications allowing leave buyout amounts at the time of
retirement to be utilized to purchase PERS service credits.

• Recommended motion: I (Fire Commissioner) move to approve the modifications to
policy P603 Sick Leave and policy P602 Annual Leave.

• Prepared by: Jeremy Loncar

Department: Fire     Contact Number: 775-847-0954

• Staff Summary: These policy modifications are cost-neutral to the district. Under the
revised policy and provisions outlined in the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA),
employees are eligible to cash out specific amounts of their sick and annual leave upon
separation. This updated policy allows employees to direct the portion of their leave
payout, which they would typically receive, directly to PERS for the purpose of
purchasing service credit.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

      23



Page 1 of 4

STOREY COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT            NUMBER:           P602
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:          
27/41/253

AUTHORITY: BOFC
FIRE CHIEF:                     JL

SUBJECT:  Annual Leave

1. PURPOSE
To provide policy and procedures regarding annual leave eligibility and usage.
2. POLICY
The established annual leave year is the calendar year, January 1st through December 31st each 
year.
2.1 Annual Leave Accrual

a. All eligible regular full-time and part-time (working an average of 20 hours or more
per week) employees are eligible to take accrued annual leave time off after 6
months of employment. The eligible employees will be credited with an equivalent
of 6 months of earned annual leave at the appropriate accrual rate at the end of 6
months of employment. Exceptions to this section in Layoffs and Reinstatement
Policy P802 apply. Other exceptions may be made under extenuating circumstances
with the approval of the Fire Chief.

b. Regular employees continually scheduled to work an average of 20 hours or more
per week will accrue annual leave. Employees do not accrue annual leave for
overtime hours worked.

c. Regular part-time employees will accrue annual leave on a pro-rate basis.

d. Accrual of annual leave for eligible employees is as follows:

24-hour Employees will be granted vacation benefits as shown in the following table.

Years of Continuous 
Service

Vacation Earning Rate
Bi-weekly Pay Period

Less than 5 years 8.31 hours (9/24 Hr. Shifts)
5 years but less than 10 
years

9.23 hours (10/24 Hr. Shifts)

10 years but less than 15 
years

10.16 hours (11/24 Hr. Shifts)

15 years but less than 20 
years

11.08 hours (12/24 Hr. Shifts)

20 years or more 12 hours (13/24 Hr. Shifts)

Vacation credits shall be accrued for each pay period the Employee is in full pay 
status a major portion of his regularly scheduled biweekly hours. The following 
provides an example of the manner in which vacation is accrued for an employee 
on 24-hour shifts.



Page 2 of 4

Example:
There are 26 pay periods in a fiscal year (July 1 through June 30). Accordingly, the 
employee accrues vacation leave as follows:

Years of Service Vacation Earning Rate and Result
(<5 years)             8.31 hrs. x 26 = 216.06
(5 years)             9.23 hrs.  x 26 = 239.98
(10 years)            10.16 hrs. x 26 = 264.16
(15 Years)            11.08 hrs. x 26 = 288.08
(20 years)            12 hrs. x 26 =             312

40-Hour Employees will be granted vacation benefits as follows:

Years of Continuous Service Vacation Earning Rate
Bi-weekly Pay Period

Less than 5 years 5.31 hours
5 years but less than 10 years 6.46 hours
10 years but less than 15 years 7.31 hours
15 years but less than 20 years 8.31 hours
20 years or more 9.31hours

Vacation credits shall be accrued for each pay period the Employee is in full pay status 
with a major portion of his/her regularly scheduled biweekly hours. The following provides 
an example of the way vacation is accrued for a 40-hour employee.

Example:
There are 26 pay periods in a fiscal year (July 1 through June 30). Accordingly, the 
employee accrues vacation leave as follows:

Years of ServiceVacation Earning Rate and Result
(<5 years)             5.31 hrs.  x 26 = 138.06
(5 years) 6.46 hrs.  x 26 = 167.96
(10 years)             7.31 hrs.  x 26 = 190.06
(15 years)             8.31 hrs. x 26 = 216.06
(20 years)             9.31 hrs. x 26 = 242.06

e. Annual leave credits are accrued for each pay period the employee is in full pay
status for a major portion of his/her regularly scheduled biweekly hours. Annual
leave is not accrued during leaves of absence without pay. No 40-hour employee
may accumulate more than 240 hours of annual leave in a calendar year. Employees
working a 56-hour work week may accumulate up to 336 hours of annual leave in a
calendar year.

2.2 Annual Leave Use and Payout

a. No more than 240 annual leave hours may be taken within any calendar year for 40-
hour employees and no more than 336 annual leave hours may be taken within any



Page 3 of 4

calendar year for 56-hour employees, subject to staffing requirements. An employee 
shall be paid at his/her regular hourly rate for each hour of annual leave time taken. 
Annual leave taken during a biweekly period shall be charged before annual leave 
earned during that pay period is credited.

b. Holidays as defined by Policy P601 occurring within the annual leave period will
not be counted against annual leave hours. An employee becoming ill while on
annual leave shall have leave charged to accrued sick leave upon request and upon
presentation of proper documentation.

c. Annual leave preferences shall be granted in order of seniority. For purposes of this
section, seniority is determined by the provisions of Policy P801.

d. Employees shall request annual leave by providing a minimum of 14 calendar days
of notice to the supervisor or Fire Chief. An exception to this 14-day requirement
may be granted by the supervisor or Fire Chief after considering the circumstances
that warrant such an exception and the convenience and conventionality of the
department.

e. If an employee on or before October 15 requests annual leave in-writing and his/her
request is denied for any reason at any time, the employee is entitled to payment for
any annual leave accrued in excess of 240 hours for 40-hour employees and 336
hours for 56-hour a week employees that s/he requested to take and which s/he
would otherwise forfeit as the result of the denial of his/her request. The payment
for the employee's unused annual leave is capped at 60 hours per calendar year and
must be made to him/her no later than January 31 of the following year. If at any
time the denial of this requested annual leave is reversed and the employee is
allowed to take the annual leave time off between October 15 and December 31, the
employee shall not receive the payment for annual leave in excess of 240 hours for
40-hour employees and 336 hours for 56-hour a week employees described above,
or must forfeit payment already made to him/her back to the district by December
31 of that year or at a later date as determined by the Comptroller’s Office.

2.3 Annual Leave Compensation at and After Termination

a. Employees voluntarily separated from employment shall lose all rights for
computing prior service upon re-employment by the employer.

b. Upon termination from employment, the employee shall be compensated at his/her
regular rate of pay for the total number of annual leave hours accrued (up to 240 or
336 hours).

c. Employees are eligible to annually purchase up to either forty hours (40) or fifty-six hours
(56) of annual leave based on their normal work schedule.  Buyout must be requested by
November 1st of that year to be paid out in the first full pay period in December on the
district-approved form. Employees may buy out down to 120 hours balance in their annual
leave bank.

2.4 Annual Leave at Separation (PERS Service Credit) 

c. Employees scheduled to retire may elect to use their accrued sick and annual leave payouts to
purchase PERS service credits. Leave payouts will be processed in accordance with Policy P603:



Page 4 of 4

Sick Leave and Policy P602: Annual Leave. To utilize this option, employees must notify Human 
Resources of their intent to apply leave buyouts toward PERS service credits at least two (2) 
months, or sixty (60) days, prior to their retirement date.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The Fire Chief and Human Resources Director will review 
this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.



Page 1 of 4

STOREY COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NUMBER: P603           
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:    

27/41/253
AUTHORITY: BOFC
FIRE CHIEF:         JL

SUBJECT:  Sick Leave

1. PURPOSE:  To establish a policy for granting sick leave to district employees.

2. POLICY: Sick leave may be granted to an employee for reasons listed under Use of Sick Leave.

2.1 Accrual and Use of Sick Leave

2.1.1 Accrual of Sick Leave

The employer expects each employee to be available for work on a regular and reliable basis.  The 
employer will monitor attendance and leave use whether or not the employee has accumulated 
leave balances remaining in his/her Sick Leave account.

a. All eligible regular full-time and part-time (working an average of 20 hours or more per
week) employees will accrue Sick Leave at the rate of 0.0577 hours per each regularly
scheduled hour worked or on paid status. Sick Leave is not accrued for any other hours.

b. All eligible regular full-time and part-time (working an average of 20 hours or more per
week) employees are eligible to take accrued sick leave time off after 60 days of
employment. The eligible employees will be credited with the equivalent of 60 days of
earned Sick Leave at the appropriate accrued rate at the end of 60 days of employment.
Exceptions to this section in Layoffs and Reinstatement Policy P802 apply. Other
exceptions may be made under extenuating circumstances with the approval of the Fire
Chief and the HR Director.

c. Sick Leave hours are earned and credited to the employee on a biweekly basis, coinciding
with pay periods.

d. Sick Leave shall be charged on the basis of actual time used to the nearest one-quarter (1/4)
hours.

e. Unused Sick Leave will be credited to the employee’s Sick Leave balance to a maximum
accrual of 1333 hours for 56 hour staff and 952 hours for 40 hour staff. For 56 hour staff,
sick Leave accrual will cease when the employee’s total year-end (calendar year) balance
reaches 1333 hours, until the balance falls below 1333 hours. For 40 hour staff, sick leave
accrual will cease when the employee’s total year-end (calendar year) balance reaches 952
hours, until the balance falls below 952 hours.

f. Holidays occurring during Sick Leave periods shall be counted as Holidays, not Sick
Leave.

2.1.2 Use of Sick Leave

Sick Leave is for use in situations in which the employee must be absent from work due to:
a. His/her own physical illness or injury;
b. His/her own exposure to contagious diseases or when attendance at work is prevented by

public health requirements;



Page 2 of 4

c. The need to care for an ill or injured dependent child, spouse or domestic partner, parent,
or any other legal dependent who is dependent upon the employee for support;

d. Medical or dental appointments for the employee, provided that the employee makes a
reasonable effort to schedule such appointments at times which have the least interference
with the workday.

e. Any disability, including disability caused or contributed to by pregnancy, miscarriage,
abortion, or childbirth;

f. Death of the employee’s spouse or domestic partner, children, parents, siblings,
grandparents, grandchildren, parents-in-law, siblings-in-law, or other legal dependents;
however, the automatic granting of Sick Leave for this situation shall be limited to five
working days, which may be extended upon the recommendation of the Fire Chief and
approval of the HR Director.

Employees who are absent from work due to Sick Leave shall be at their residence, a medical facility, 
their doctor’s office, or shall notify their supervisor of their whereabouts when using Sick Leave.  

2.1.3 Abuse of sick leave

Use of Sick Leave for purposes other than those listed in section 2.1.2 above is considered abuse of 
Sick Leave. Abuse of Sick Leave is cause for disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 
If the employer suspects abuse, it may require substantiating evidence which may include but is not 
limited to, a certificate from a healthcare provider for any length of sick leave use.

2.1.4 Illness during Annual Leave

If an employee on annual leave suffers an illness or injury which requires medical treatment from a 
licensed physician or health practitioner, s/he may elect to charge that time to his/her accumulated 
Sick Leave provided that the employee furnishes the employer with a certificate issued by the 
licensed physician or health practitioner providing treatment.

2.1.5 Placing an Employee on Sick Leave

An employer may place an employee on Sick Leave if s/he has an illness that appears to be 
contagious, or due to a known or suspected illness or injury, the employee is not able to perform the 
essential functions of their position with or without reasonable accommodation.

2.1.6 Return to work

An employee on Sick Leave shall notify his/her supervisor as soon as the employee is able to return 
to work. An employee returning from an extended absence shall give as much advance notice of 
return as possible. 

a. The HR Director or Fire Chief may require a statement from a licensed physician or health
practitioner certifying the employee’s fitness to return to work (fit-for-duty) when an
employee has been absent from work for three contiguous work days or longer.

b. An employee requesting Sick Leave lasting longer than three contiguous work days may
be required to provide the supervisor or Fire Chief with acceptable evidence to substantiate
the request.

2.1.7 Sick Leave Alternative



Page 3 of 4

If an employee does not have adequate accrued Sick Leave time, the employee may be granted the 
use of Annual Leave or other accrued leave time for this purpose. In no case, however, may Sick 
Leave time be used or granted for use as Annual Leave or Vacation time.
Employees may donate their accrued Sick Leave to those employees that do not have adequate 
accrued Sick Leave as provided for in policy P604 governing Catastrophic Sick Leave.

2.1.8 Sick Leave at Separation 

Upon separation from employment due to resignation, termination, layoff, retirement, disability, or 
death, an eligible employee with a total of 360 accrued hours, or more, shall receive a one-time 
recognition payment based upon the amount of unused Sick Leave remaining in the employee’s sick 
leave account. Compensation for his/her total Sick Leave hours shall be at the following rates up to 
a maximum of 1333 hours for 56-hour employees and 952 hours for 40-hour employees.

a. 5 years but less  than 10 years of service shall be paid 35 cents on the dollar;
b. 10 year but less than 20 year of service shall be paid 50 cents on the dollar;
c. More than 20 years of service shall be paid 65.0 cents on the dollar.

Employees who serve five (5) or more years with the district that retire shall be provided an 
additional ten (10) cents on the dollar for sick leave buyout.  Retirement must be verified through 
NV PERS

2.1.9 Sick Leave at Separation (PERS Service Credit)

Employees scheduled to retire may elect to use their accrued sick and annual leave payouts to 
purchase PERS service credits. Leave payouts will be processed in accordance with Policy P603: 
Sick Leave and Policy P602: Annual Leave.

To utilize this option, employees must notify Human Resources of their intent to apply leave buyouts 
toward PERS service credits at least two (2) months, or sixty (60) days, prior to their retirement date.

2.2 Procedure

2.2.1 Leave Approval

An employee shall complete an appropriate leave request form as soon as the need for leave is 
known. The supervisor or Fire Chief shall determine whether to approve the use of accrued Sick 
Leave and shall approve such a request whenever it is deemed reasonable.

2.2.2 Notification

Any employee who is ill or unable to report to work for any reason shall notify his/her immediate 
supervisor no later than 15 minutes following the employee’s normal work reporting time. In the 
event of a continuing illness, the employee shall continue to notify his/her immediate supervisor 
daily, or at appropriate intervals agreed on by the supervisor, of his/her condition. The employer 
may deny Sick Leave requests which are not in compliance with this policy.

2.2.3 Doctor’s Certification



Page 4 of 4

The employer may require an employee to provide a medical doctor’s certification that the 
illness/injury incapacitated the employee from performing his/her duties, was necessary for the 
employee to make full and timely recovery, or was appropriate to avoid the spread of a contagious 
disease. The certification will also verify the employee’s fitness for return to work (fit-for-duty). A 
physician’s statement is required when specifically requested by the supervisor or Fire Chief and 
when the employee has been on Sick Leave for three or more contiguous days. 
2.2.4 FMLA Leave
FMLA leave is not considered Sick Leave. Refer to Policy P605 for all qualified leave under the 
Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA).

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The Fire Chief and Human Resources Director will review this 
policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.



Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval to dispose of by means of auction, donation,
sale, or trade-in, of a 2006 Yukon and a 2006 Ford F350 Dozer tender.

• Recommended motion: I (Fire Commissioner) move to approve the disposal of a 2006
Yukon and a 2006 Ford F350 Dozer tender by means of auction, donation, sale, or trade-
in.

• Prepared by: Jeremy Loncar

Department: Fire     Contact Number: 775-847-0954

• Staff Summary: I am requesting approval to reduce our fleet by means of sale, auction,
trade-in, or donation of the following vehicles:

•
• Yukon Command Vehicle GMC 2006 1GKEK13T76R147470
• F-350 Dozer Tender FORD 2006 1FDWF37P66ED53461
•
• These vehicles have met the end of their useful life for the district by means of

mechanical issues and/or mileage. These units are still mostly operational, however, they
could require an extensive amount of repair to make them reliable.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

        24



[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County Board of Highway 
Commissioners

Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 15 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Election of Secretary to the Board of Storey County Highway Commissioners for
the term of one year.

• Recommended motion: I (highway commissioner) motion to elect ___________ as
Secretary to the Board of Storey County Highway Commissioners for the term of one
year.

• Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Commissioners     Contact Number: 7758470968

• Staff Summary: Highway Commission Secretary.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       26



Storey County Board of Highway 
Commissioners

Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Report of Public Works Department regarding roads and highways throughout
Storey County.

• Recommended motion: Discussion only.

• Prepared by: Jason Wierzbicki

Department: Public Works     Contact Number: 7758470958

• Staff Summary: Discussion of roads and highways throughout the county.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       27



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Discussion and possible consideration approving the Storey County Sheriff's
Office receipt of a Grant from the State of Nevada Department of Public Safety, Office of
Criminal Justice Assistance in the amount of $30,836.64, Federal Award# l SPBJA-21-
GG-00252-MUMU, to be used for travel and equipment purchase of 2 drug detection K9s
and miscellaneous costs associated with this purchase.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner name) motion to allow the Storey County
Sheriff's Office to receive a Grant from the State of Nevada Department of Publiic
Safety, Office of Criminal Justice Assistance in the amount of $30,836.64, Federal
Award # 15PBJA-21-GG-00252-MUMU to be used for travel and equipment purchase of
2 drug detection K9s and miscellaneous costs associated with this purchase.

• Prepared by: Sheriff Mike Cullen

Department: Sheriff     Contact Number: 7758470959

• Staff Summary: The Storey County Sheriff's Office has received an award amount of
$30,836.64 from the Nevada Department of Public Safety, Office of Criminal Justice
Assistance to purchase 2 drug detection K9s and for travel and misc. costs associated
with this purchase. These funds will be used along with other grant funds to establish our
drug detection K9 program. The unbudgeted revenues and expenses for this grant will be
accounted for in the County’s Grant Fund and may possibly create the need for an
augmentation or transfer at the end of the year.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

       29



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued





Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Discussion and possible consideration approving the Storey County Sheriff's
Office to receive a grant from the State of Nevada Department of Public Safety, Office of
Criminal Justice Assistance in the Amount of $15,000, Federal Award Number l SPBJA-
22-GG-00625-MUMU to be used for training and travel arid misc. equipment indicated
as other for deputies assigned to the Storey County Sheriff's Office Drug Initiative
Program.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner name) motion to allow the Storey County
Sheriff's Office to recieve a Grant from the State of Nevada Department of Public Safety,
Office of Criminal Justice Assistance in the Amount of $15,000, Federal Award number
15PBJA-22-GG-00625-MUMU to be used for training and travel and misc equipment
indicated as other for Deputies assigned to the Storey County Sheriff's Office Drug
Initiative Program.

• Prepared by: Sheriff Mike Cullen

Department: Sheriff     Contact Number: 7758470959

• Staff Summary: The Storey County Sheriff's Office has received an award amount of
$15,000 from the State of Nevada JAG Grant program to be used for training, travel and
miscellaneous costs associated with the K9 program that is currently being established.
This money will cover the costs of travel, supplies and registrations for K9 and drug
related training. It will be used along with other grant funds to establish our K9 program
for drug detection only K9's. The unbudgeted revenues and expenses for this grant will be
accounted for in the County’s Grant Fund and may possibly create the need for an
augmentation or transfer at the end of the year.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

      30



____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued





Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Discussion and consideration approving the Storey County Sheriff's Office to
receive one Humvee 4-wheel-drive vehicle Serial Number l 4016NV00004 from the
Douglas County Sheriff's Office through the State of Nevada l 033 LESO program for
use as a Search and Rescue Vehicle as well as use in parades and for community outreach
events.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner name) motion to allow the Storey County
Sheriff's Office to receive one Humvee 4 wheel drive vehicle Serial Number
14016NV00004 from the Douglas County Sheriff's Office through the State of Nevada
1033 LESO program for use as a Search and Rescue Vehicle as well as use in parades
and for community outreach events.

• Prepared by: Sheriff Mike Cullen

Department: Sheriff     Contact Number: 7758470959

• Staff Summary: The Douglas County Sheriff's Office has offered the transfer of their
Humvee that they used for Search and Rescue to the Storey County Sheriff's Office
through the State 1033 LESO program. Both agencies are particpants in the program and
the transfer is a way to receive equipment that can continue to be used without the need
to purchase new equipment at a high cost to Storey County. This Humvee is currently
outfitted with some equipment including emergancy lights however, will be upgraded
with more equipment  for specific use as a dedicated Search and Rescue Vehicle such as
communications and medical equipment.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

      31



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued







Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Re-appoint Scott Jolcover to a 4-year term on the Storey County Board of
Equalization.

• Recommended motion: I, Comissioner (Name), move to reappoint Scott Jolcover for a
4-year term on the Storey County Board of Equalization.

• Prepared by: Jim Hindle

Department: Clerk & Treasurer     Contact Number: 7758470969

• Staff Summary: Letter of Interest Attached

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       32



Storey County Human Resources

Storey County Court House

26 South "B" Street

P.O. Box 176

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

RE: Storey County Board of Equalization Member "At Large"

January 12,2025

JAt'i 1 7 )Mc

To whom it may concern:

I am interested in and am applying for the position of Storey County Board of
Equalization Member "At Large"

Having been involved in real estate since the age of 21, and formerly licensed as a

Realtor Salesman in the State of Nevada my knowledge of real and personal property,

throughout Storey County, among other counties throughout the state goes back 49

years. I am familiar with property appraisal techniques and property tax law and

have worked in the building trades including in the IBEW local #134 in lllinois. Having
served on this board for some time, both as it's Chair and Vice-Chair, I feel well
qualified in how the Board works, it's rules and regulations and interfaces with the
Assessor and District Attorney's office.

As a tax paying owner of land and buildings in Storey County, it would be an honor to
continue serving the tax paying Citizens of Storey County in 2025 thru 2028.

Please contact me with any questions or concerns.

Kindest rega

o lcover

775-742-9694

Siolcover@AOL.COM

I



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval to accept a quote from Coons Construction for
site improvements at 800 South C Street to provide sidewalk widening for ADA
compliance, bollards for building protection, and a flagpole in an amount not to exceed
$21,478.00 and to authorize the County Manager to sign the contract for construction.

• Recommended motion: I, [commissioner], move to accept the quote from Coons
Construction for site improvements at 800 South C Street to provide sidewalk widening
for ADA compliance, bollards for building protection, and a flagpole in an amount not to
exceed $21,478.00 and to authorize the County Manager to sign the contract for
construction.

• Prepared by: Mike Northan

Department: Public Works     Contact Number: 775 230 4255

• Staff Summary: These site improvements enhance building security and provide for
compliance with ADA requirements by providing a minimum 36" wide travelway for
disabled persons from the designated ADA parking place to the front door of Justice
Court and the adjacent tenant space.  This work also provides a 25 foot tall flag pole.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact: 21,478.00

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

        33



[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



PROPOSAL
Date

11/6/2024

ID

61000

Customer Information

Storey CountyPublic Works
Attn: Mike Northan
PO Box 435
Virginia City, NV  894040

Coons Construction, LLC

Thank you for  the opportunity.
Total

Unless specifically detailed, all permits, inspection, staking, survey and any other professional fees  are specifically excluded from this Proposal. 
NOT responsible for unmarked utilities. 

Surface Improvements billed at actual measurement on completion.
 Proposal good for 30 days. Please contact office for scheduling.

Accepted: ___________________________________

Date:_______________________________________

NV Licenses 38006A and 39195A

PO Box 1460
Dayton, NV 89403
Ph: 775-246-1660

Project

Description Qty Rate Total

Sawcut, demo AC, prep and place concrete along existing sidewalk
and new side walk (Approx. 162SF)

162 30.00 4,860.00

Install 6" bollards 5 850.00 4,250.00
prep form place and finish ( 6 x 44' with base) (Approx. 264SF) 264 22.00 5,808.00
Supply and install flag pole
(25ft, 1 piece, wind speed 117MPH, 5 Butt Dia x .156 wall
thickness, internal Halyard Winch Aluminum

1 6,560.00 6,560.00

$21,478.00



Document A105® – 2017
Standard Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor

Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025 
under Order No.2114594188 which expires on 01/01/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1262967141)

1

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document has 
added information needed for its 
completion. The author may also 
have revised the text of the original 
AIA standard form. An Additions and 
Deletions Report that notes added 
information as well as revisions to the 
standard form text is available from 
the author and should be reviewed. A 
vertical line in the left margin of this 
document indicates where the author 
has added necessary information 
and where the author has added to or 
deleted from the original AIA text.

This document has important legal 
consequences. Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged with respect 
to its completion or modification.

AGREEMENT made as of the  2nd  day of January in the year  2025 
(In words, indicate day, month and year.)

BETWEEN the Owner:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

Storey County Public Works 
P.O. Box 435
Virginia City, NV  89440

and the Contractor:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

  Coons Construction LLC
PO Box 1460
Dayton, NV  89403-1460

for the following Project:
(Name, location and detailed description)

  Site Improvement - Flagpole

The Architect:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

    NA

The Owner and Contractor agree as follows.



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025 
under Order No.2114594188 which expires on 01/01/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1262967141)

2

TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

2 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

3 CONTRACT SUM

4 PAYMENTS

5 INSURANCE

6 GENERAL PROVISIONS

7 OWNER

8 CONTRACTOR

9 ARCHITECT

10 CHANGES IN THE WORK

11 TIME

12 PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

13 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

14 CORRECTION OF WORK

15 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

16 TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT

17 OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS

ARTICLE 1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
The Contractor shall complete the Work described in the Contract Documents for the Project. The Contract 
Documents consist of

.1 this Agreement signed by the Owner and Contractor;

(Paragraphs deleted)
.2-
.4 written orders for changes in the Work, pursuant to Article 10, issued after execution of this 

Agreement; and

.5 other documents, if any, identified as follows:

Exhibit A  dated 11/6/2024 

ARTICLE 2 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
§ 2.1 The Contract Time is the number of calendar days available to the Contractor to substantially complete the
Work.

§ 2.2 Date of Commencement:
Unless otherwise set forth below, the date of commencement shall be the date of this Agreement.



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025 
under Order No.2114594188 which expires on 01/01/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1262967141)

3

(Insert the date of commencement if other than the date of this Agreement.)

TBD based on material delivery  

§ 2.3 Substantial Completion:
Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall achieve
Substantial Completion, as defined in Section 12.5, of the entire Work:
(Check the appropriate box and complete the necessary information.)

[    ] Not later than    (    ) calendar days from the date of commencement.

[    ] By the following date:  June 15, 2025 

ARTICLE 3   CONTRACT SUM
§ 3.1 The Contract Sum shall include all items and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the
Work. Subject to additions and deductions in accordance with Article 10, the Contract Sum is:

 Twenty one thousand, four hundred and seventy eight dollars and no cents  ($ 21,478.00   )

§ 3.2 For purposes of payment, the Contract Sum includes the following values related to portions of the Work:
(Itemize the Contract Sum among the major portions of the Work.)

Portion of the Work Value
  See Exhibit A dated 11/6/24 $21,478.00

§ 3.3 The Contract Sum is based upon the following alternates, if any, which are described in the Contract Documents
and hereby accepted by the Owner:
(Identify the accepted alternates. If the bidding or proposal documents permit the Owner to accept other alternates
subsequent to the execution of this Agreement, attach a schedule of such other alternates showing the amount for each
and the date when that amount expires.)

  NA

-
(Table deleted)
(Paragraphs deleted)
(Table deleted)
(Paragraphs deleted)
ARTICLE 4   PAYMENTS
§ 4.1 Based on Contractor’s Applications for Payment certified by the Architect, the Owner shall pay the Contractor,
in accordance with Article 12, as follows:
(Insert below timing for payments and provisions for withholding retainage, if any.)

  Monthly installments including inventoried materials until complete

§ 4.2 Payments due and unpaid under the Contract Documents shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the
rate below, or in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing at the place of the Project.
(Insert rate of interest agreed upon, if any.)

NA   %   

ARTICLE 5   INSURANCE
§ 5.1 The Contractor shall maintain the following types and limits of insurance until the expiration of the period for
correction of Work as set forth in Section 14.2, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Section 5.1:

§ 5.1.1 Commercial General Liability insurance for the Project, written on an occurrence form, with policy limits of not less
than  two million  ($  2,000,000  ) each occurrence, one million   ($ 1,000,000   ) general aggregate, -



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025 
under Order No.2114594188 which expires on 01/01/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1262967141)

4

§ 5.1.2 Automobile Liability covering vehicles owned, and non-owned vehicles used, by the Contractor, with policy
limits of not less than one million   ($  1,000,000  ) per accident, for bodily injury, death of any person, and property
damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance, and use of those motor vehicles along with any other statutorily
required automobile coverage.

§ 5.1.3 The Contractor may achieve the required limits and coverage for Commercial General Liability and
Automobile Liability through a combination of primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance, provided that such
primary and excess or umbrella insurance policies result in the same or greater coverage as those required under
Section 5.1.1 and 5.1.2, and in no event shall any excess or umbrella liability insurance provide narrower coverage
than the primary policy. The excess policy shall not require exhaustion of the underlying limits only through the actual
payment by the underlying insurers.

§ 5.1.4 Workers’ Compensation at statutory limits.

-
(Paragraph deleted)
§ 5.1.6 The -Owner shall provide builder’s risk insurance to cover the total value of the entire Project on a replacement
cost basis.

-
(Table deleted)
(Paragraphs deleted)
§ 5.2 The Owner shall be responsible for purchasing and maintaining the Owner’s usual liability insurance and shall
provide property insurance to cover the value of the Owner’s property. The Contractor is entitled to receive an increase
in the Contract Sum equal to the insurance proceeds related to a loss for damage to the Work covered by the Owner’s
property insurance.

§ 5.3 The Contractor shall obtain an endorsement to its Commercial General Liability insurance policy to provide
coverage for the Contractor’s obligations under Section 8.12.

§ 5.4 Prior to commencement of the Work, each party shall provide certificates of insurance showing their respective
coverages.

§ 5.5 Unless specifically precluded by the Owner’s property insurance policy, the Owner and Contractor waive all
rights against (1) each other and any of their subcontractors, suppliers, agents, and employees, each of the other; and
(2) the Architect, Architect’s consultants, and any of their agents and employees, for damages caused by fire or other
causes of loss to the extent those losses are covered by property insurance or other insurance applicable to the Project,
except such rights as they have to the proceeds of such insurance.

ARTICLE 6   GENERAL PROVISIONS
§ 6.1 The Contract
The Contract represents the entire and integrated agreement between the parties and supersedes prior negotiations,
representations or agreements, either written or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a written
modification in accordance with Article 10.

§ 6.2 The Work
The term "Work" means the construction and services required by the Contract Documents, and includes all other
labor, materials, equipment, and services provided, or to be provided, by the Contractor to fulfill the Contractor’s
obligations.

§ 6.3 Intent
The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper execution and completion of the
Work by the Contractor. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by one shall be as binding
as if required by all.



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025 
under Order No.2114594188 which expires on 01/01/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1262967141)

5

§ 6.4 Ownership and Use of -, Specifications and Other Documents
Documents prepared by the Owner- are instruments of the Owner’s service for use solely with respect to this Project.
The Owner shall retain all common law, statutory, and other reserved rights, including the copyright. The Contractor,
subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, and suppliers are authorized to use and reproduce the instruments of service solely
and exclusively for execution of the Work. The instruments of service may not be used for other Projects or for
additions to this Project outside the scope of the Work without the specific written consent of the Architect.

-

(Paragraphs deleted)
ARTICLE 7   OWNER
§ 7.1 Information and Services Required of the Owner
§ 7.1.1 If requested by the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish all necessary surveys and a legal description of the site.

-, the Owner shall obtain and pay for other necessary approvals, easements, assessments, testing, inspections and 
charges.

(Paragraph deleted)
§ 7.1.3 Prior to commencement of the Work, at the written request of the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to the
Contractor reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s obligations
under the Contract. The Contractor shall have no obligation to commence the Work until the Owner provides such
evidence.

§ 7.2 Owner’s Right to Stop the Work
If the Contractor fails to correct Work which is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Owner may direct
the Contractor in writing to stop the Work until the correction is made.

§ 7.3 Owner’s Right to Carry Out the Work
If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and fails
within a seven day period after receipt of written notice from the Owner to commence and continue correction of such
default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies, correct such
deficiencies. In such case, the Architect may withhold or nullify a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part, to the
extent reasonably necessary to reimburse the Owner for the cost of correction, provided the actions of the Owner and
amounts charged to the Contractor were approved by the Architect.

§ 7.4 Owner’s Right to Perform Construction and to Award Separate Contracts
§ 7.4.1 The Owner reserves the right to perform construction or operations related to the Project with the Owner’s own
forces, and to award separate contracts in connection with other portions of the Project.

§ 7.4.2 The Contractor shall coordinate and cooperate with the Owner’s own forces and separate contractors employed
by the Owner.

ARTICLE 8   CONTRACTOR
§ 8.1 Review of Contract Documents and Field Conditions by Contractor
§ 8.1.1 Execution of the Contract by the Contractor is a representation that the Contractor has visited the site, become
familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and correlated personal observations with
requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 8.1.2 The Contractor shall carefully study and compare the Contract Documents with each other and with
information furnished by the Owner. Before commencing activities, the Contractor shall (1) take field measurements
and verify field conditions; (2) carefully compare this and other information known to the Contractor with the Contract
Documents; and (3) promptly report errors, inconsistencies, or omissions discovered to the Owner



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025 
under Order No.2114594188 which expires on 01/01/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1262967141)

6

§ 8.2 Contractor’s Construction Schedule
The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract, shall prepare and submit for the Owner’s - information a
Contractor’s construction schedule for the Work.

§ 8.3 Supervision and Construction Procedures
§ 8.3.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work using the Contractor’s best skill and attention. The
Contractor shall be solely responsible for and have control over construction means, methods, techniques, sequences,
and procedures, and for coordinating all portions of the Work.

§ 8.3.2 The Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the Contract, shall furnish in writing to the Owner,
through the Architect, the names of subcontractors or suppliers for each portion of the Work. The Contractor shall not
contract with any subcontractor or supplier to whom the Owner - have made a timely and reasonable objection.

§ 8.4 Labor and Materials
§ 8.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for labor,
materials, equipment, tools, utilities, transportation, and other facilities and services necessary for proper execution
and completion of the Work.

§ 8.4.2 The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Contractor’s employees and other
persons carrying out the Contract Work. The Contractor shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not
skilled in tasks assigned to them.

§ 8.5 Warranty
The Contractor warrants to the Owner - that: (1) materials and equipment furnished under the Contract will be new and
of good quality unless otherwise required or permitted by the Contract Documents; (2) the Work will be free from
defects not inherent in the quality required or permitted; and (3) the Work will conform to the requirements of the
Contract Documents. Any material or equipment warranties required by the Contract Documents shall be issued in the
name of the Owner, or shall be transferable to the Owner, and shall commence in accordance with Section 12.5.

§ 8.6 Taxes
The Contractor shall pay sales, consumer, use, and similar taxes that are legally required when the Contract is
executed.

§ 8.7 Permits, Fees and Notices
§ 8.7.1 The Owner shall obtain and pay for the building permit and other permits and governmental fees, licenses, and
inspections necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work.

§ 8.7.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by agencies having jurisdiction over the Work. If
the Contractor performs Work knowing it to be contrary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and
regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, the Contractor shall assume full responsibility for such Work and
shall bear the attributable costs. The Contractor shall promptly notify the Owner in writing of any known
inconsistencies in the Contract Documents with such governmental laws, rules, and regulations.

§ 8.8 Submittals
The Contractor shall promptly review, approve in writing, and submit to the Ownershop drawings, product data,
samples, and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents. Shop drawings, product data, samples, and
similar submittals are not Contract Documents.

§ 8.9 Use of Site
The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by law, ordinances, permits, the Contract
Documents, and the Owner.

§ 8.10 Cutting and Patching
The Contractor shall be responsible for cutting, fitting, or patching required to complete the Work or to make its parts
fit together properly.



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025 
under Order No.2114594188 which expires on 01/01/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1262967141)

7

§ 8.11 Cleaning Up
The Contractor shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of debris and trash related to the
Work. At the completion of the Work, the Contractor shall remove its tools, construction equipment, machinery, and
surplus material; and shall properly dispose of waste materials.

§ 8.12 Indemnification
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner-, and agents and
employees of any of them, from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to
attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work, provided that such claim, damage, loss, or
expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property
(other than the Work itself), but only to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the Contractor, a
subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless
of whether or not such claim, damage, loss or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder.

-
-
(Paragraphs deleted)
ARTICLE 10   CHANGES IN THE WORK
§ 10.1 The Owner, without invalidating the Contract, may order changes in the Work within the general scope of the
Contract, consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions, and the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be
adjusted accordingly, in writing. If the Owner and Contractor cannot agree to a change in the Contract Sum, the Owner
shall pay the Contractor its actual cost plus reasonable overhead and profit.

§ 10.2 The Owner may authorize or order minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the Contract
Documents and do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time. Such
authorization or order shall be in writing and shall be binding on the Owner and Contractor. The Contractor shall
proceed with such minor changes promptly.

§ 10.3 If concealed or unknown physical conditions are encountered at the site that differ materially from those
indicated in the Contract Documents or from those conditions ordinarily found to exist, the Contract Sum and Contract
Time shall be subject to equitable adjustment.

ARTICLE 11   TIME
§ 11.1 Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract.

§ 11.2 If the Contractor is delayed at any time in progress of the Work by changes ordered in the Work, or by labor
disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties, or other causes beyond the Contractor’s control, the
Contract Time shall be subject to equitable adjustment.

§ 11.3 Costs caused by delays or by improperly timed activities or defective construction shall be borne by the
responsible party.

ARTICLE 12   PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION
§ 12.1 Contract Sum
The Contract Sum stated in this Agreement, including authorized adjustments, is the total amount payable by the
Owner to the Contractor for performance of the Work under the Contract Documents.

§ 12.2 Applications for Payment
§ 12.2.1 At least ten days before the date established for each progress payment, the Contractor shall submit to the
Architect an itemized Application for Payment for Work completed in accordance with the values stated in this
Agreement. The Application shall be supported by data substantiating the Contractor’s right to payment as the Owner
or Architect may reasonably require, such as evidence of payments made to, and waivers of liens from, subcontractors and
suppliers. Payments shall be made on account of materials and equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for
subsequent incorporation in the Work. If approved in advance by the Owner, payment may similarly be made for
materials and equipment stored, and protected from damage, off the site at a location agreed upon in writing.



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025 
under Order No.2114594188 which expires on 01/01/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1262967141)

8

§ 12.2.2 The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass to the Owner
no later than the time of payment. The Contractor further warrants that upon submittal of an Application for Payment,
all Work for which Certificates for Payment have been previously issued and payments received from the Owner shall,
to the best of the Contractor’s knowledge, information, and belief, be free and clear of liens, claims, security interests,
or other encumbrances adverse to the Owner’s interests.

§ 12.3 Certificates for Payment
The Owner will, within seven days after receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, either (1) issue a
Certificate for Payment in the full amount of the Application for Payment, with a copy to the Contractor; (2) issue to
the Owner a Certificate for Payment for such amount as the Owner determines is properly due, and notify the
Contractor in writing of the Owners reasons for withholding certification in part; or (3) withhold certification of the
entire Application for Payment, and notify the Contractor reason for withholding certification in whole. If certification
or notification is not made within such seven day period, the Contractor may, upon seven additional days’ written
notice to the Owner stop the Work until payment of the amount owing has been received. The Contract Time and the
Contract Sum shall be equitably adjusted due to the delay.

§ 12.4 Progress Payments
§ 12.4.1 the Owner shall make payment in the manner provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 12.4.2 The Contractor shall promptly pay each subcontractor and supplier, upon receipt of payment from the Owner,
an amount determined in accordance with the terms of the applicable subcontracts and purchase orders.

§ 12.4.3 Neither the Owner nor the Architect shall have responsibility for payments to a subcontractor or supplier.

§ 12.4.4 A Certificate for Payment, a progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the
Owner shall not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 12.5 Substantial Completion
§ 12.5.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated portion thereof
is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work for
its intended use.

§ 12.5.2 When the Contractor believes that the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, it will
notify the Owner and the Owner will make an inspection to determine whether the Work is substantially complete.
When the Owner determines that the Work is substantially complete, the Owner shall prepare a Certificate of
Substantial Completion that shall establish the date of Substantial Completion, establish the responsibilities of the
Owner and Contractor, and fix the time within which the Contractor shall finish all items on the list accompanying the
Certificate. Warranties required by the Contract Documents shall commence on the date of Substantial Completion of
the Work or designated portion thereof unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Substantial Completion.

§ 12.6 Final Completion and Final Payment
§ 12.6.1 Upon receipt of a final Application for Payment, the  Owner will inspect the Work. When the Owner finds the
Work acceptable and the Contract fully performed, the Owner will promptly issue a final Certificate for Payment.

§ 12.6.2 Final payment shall not become due until the Contractor submits to the Owner releases and waivers of liens,
and data establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts, claims, security interests, or
encumbrances arising out of the Contract.

§ 12.6.3 Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor, a subcontractor or supplier shall constitute a waiver of claims
by that payee except those previously made in writing and identified by that payee as unsettled at the time of final
Application for Payment.

ARTICLE 13   PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and programs, 
including all those required by law in connection with performance of the Contract. The Contractor shall take 
reasonable precautions to prevent damage, injury, or loss to employees on the Work and other persons who may be 
affected thereby, the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, and other property at the site or 



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025 
under Order No.2114594188 which expires on 01/01/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1262967141)

9

adjacent thereto. The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage and loss to property caused in whole or in part by the 
Contractor, or by anyone for whose acts the Contractor may be liable.

ARTICLE 14   CORRECTION OF WORK
§ 14.1 The Contractor shall promptly correct Work rejected by the Owner as failing to conform to the requirements of
the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting such rejected Work, including the costs of
uncovering, replacement, and additional testing.

§ 14.2 In addition to the Contractor’s other obligations including warranties under the Contract, the Contractor shall,
for a period of one year after Substantial Completion, correct work not conforming to the requirements of the Contract
Documents.

§ 14.3 If the Contractor fails to correct nonconforming Work within a reasonable time, the Owner may correct it in
accordance with Section 7.3.

ARTICLE 15   MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
§ 15.1 Assignment of Contract
Neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole without written consent of the other.

§ 15.2 Tests and Inspections
§ 15.2.1 At the appropriate times, the Contractor shall arrange and the Owner shall bear cost of tests, inspections, and
approvals of portions of the Work required by the Contract Documents or by laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules
and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities.

§ 15.2.2 If the Owner requires additional testing, the Contractor shall perform those tests.

§ 15.2.3 The Owner shall bear cost of tests, inspections, or approvals that do not become requirements until after the
Contract is executed. The Owner shall directly arrange and pay for tests, inspections, or approvals where building
codes or applicable laws or regulations so require.

§ 15.3 Governing Law
The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, including that jurisdiction’s choice
of law rules.

ARTICLE 16   TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT
§ 16.1 Termination by the Contractor
If the Work is stopped under Section 12.3 for a period of 14 days through no fault of the Contractor, the Contractor
may, upon seven additional days’ written notice to the Owner, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner
payment for Work executed including reasonable overhead and profit, and costs incurred by reason of such
termination.

§ 16.2 Termination by the Owner for Cause
§ 16.2.1 The Owner may terminate the Contract if the Contractor

.1 repeatedly refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials;

.2 fails to make payment to subcontractors for materials or labor in accordance with the respective 
agreements between the Contractor and the subcontractors;

.3 repeatedly disregards applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful 
orders of a public authority; or

.4 is otherwise guilty of substantial breach of a provision of the Contract Documents.

§ 16.2.2 When any of the above reasons exist, the Owner, after consultation with the Architect, may without prejudice
to any other rights or remedies of the Owner and after giving the Contractor and the Contractor’s surety, if any, seven
days’ written notice, terminate employment of the Contractor and may

.1 take possession of the site and of all materials thereon owned by the Contractor, and

.2 finish the Work by whatever reasonable method the Owner may deem expedient.



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025 
under Order No.2114594188 which expires on 01/01/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1262967141)

10

§ 16.2.3 When the Owner terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated in Section 16.2.1, the Contractor shall
not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished.

§ 16.2.4 If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of finishing the Work, such excess shall be paid to the
Contractor. If such costs exceed the unpaid balance, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. This
obligation for payment shall survive termination of the Contract.

§ 16.3 Termination by the Owner for Convenience
The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract for the Owner’s convenience and without cause. The Contractor
shall be entitled to receive payment for Work executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination, along with
reasonable overhead and profit on the Work not executed.

ARTICLE 17   OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS
(Insert any other terms or conditions below.)

  NA

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above.
(If required by law, insert cancellation period, disclosures or other warning statements above the signatures.)

  NA

- See attached Signature Page- - See attached Signature Page-

OWNER (Signature) CONTRACTOR (Signature)
Austin Osborne, County Manager Daniel F Coons, Coons Construction LLC     
(Printed name and title ) (Printed name and title )

LICENSE NO.: 39195A and 38006A
JURISDICTION: NV



Init.

/

AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” 
the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025 
under Order No.2114594188 which expires on 01/01/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA 
Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1262967141)

11

Signatures Page



Additions and Deletions Report for
AIA® Document A105® – 2017

This Additions and Deletions Report, as defined on page 1 of the associated document, reproduces below all text the author has added 
to the standard form AIA document in order to complete it, as well as any text the author may have added to or deleted from the original 
AIA text. Added text is shown underlined. Deleted text is indicated with a horizontal line through the original AIA text.

Note:  This Additions and Deletions Report is provided for information purposes only and is not incorporated into or constitute any part 
of the associated AIA document. This Additions and Deletions Report and its associated document were generated simultaneously by 
AIA software at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025.

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” 
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was 
produced at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025 under Order No.2114594188 which expires on 01/01/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only 
be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1262967141)

1

PAGE 1

AGREEMENT made as of the  2nd  day of January in the year  2025 

…

Storey County Public Works 
P.O. Box 435
Virginia City, NV  89440

…

  Coons Construction LLC
PO Box 1460
Dayton, NV  89403-1460

…

  Site Improvement - Flagpole

…

    NA
PAGE 2

.2 the drawings and specifications prepared by the Architect, dated   , and enumerated as follows:

Drawings:
Number Title Date

Specifications:
Section Title Pages

.3 addenda prepared by the Architect as follows:
Number Date Pages

.2-

…

Exhibit A  dated 11/6/2024 
PAGE 3



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” 
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was 
produced at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025 under Order No.2114594188 which expires on 01/01/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only 
be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1262967141)

2

TBD based on material delivery  

…

[    ] By the following date:  June 15, 2025 

…

 Twenty one thousand, four hundred and seventy eight dollars and no cents  ($ 21,478.00   )

…

  See Exhibit A dated 11/6/24 $21,478.00

…

  NA
-
§ 3.4 Allowances, if any, included in the Contract Sum are as follows:
(Identify each allowance.)

Item Price

§ 3.5 Unit prices, if any, are as follows:
(Identify the item and state the unit price and quantity limitations, if any, to which the unit price will be applicable.)

Item Units and Limitations Price per Unit ($0.00)

…

  Monthly installments including inventoried materials until complete

…

NA   %   

…

§ 5.1.1 Commercial General Liability insurance for the Project, written on an occurrence form, with policy limits of not less
than  ($    ) each occurrence,    ($    ) general aggregate, and    ($    ) aggregate for products-completed operations
hazard.two million  ($  2,000,000  ) each occurrence, one million   ($ 1,000,000   ) general aggregate, -

§ 5.1.2 Automobile Liability covering vehicles owned, and non-owned vehicles used, by the Contractor, with policy
limits of not less than one million   ($  1,000,000  ) per accident, for bodily injury, death of any person, and property
damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance, and use of those motor vehicles along with any other statutorily
required automobile coverage.
PAGE 4

-
§ 5.1.5 Employers’ Liability with policy limits not less than    ($    ) each accident,    ($    ) each employee, and    ($    )
policy limit.

§ 5.1.6 The Contractor -Owner shall provide builder’s risk insurance to cover the total value of the entire Project on a
replacement cost basis.



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” 
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was 
produced at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025 under Order No.2114594188 which expires on 01/01/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only 
be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1262967141)

3

-
§ 5.1.7 Other Insurance Provided by the Contractor
(List below any other insurance coverage to be provided by the Contractor and any applicable limits.)

Coverage Limits

PAGE 5

§ 6.4
Ownership and Use of Architect’s Drawings, Specifications and Other DocumentsOwnership and Use of -, Spec
ifications and Other Documents
Documents prepared by the Architect Owner- are instruments of the Architect’s Owner’s service for use solely with
respect to this Project. The Architect Owner shall retain all common law, statutory, and other reserved rights,
including the copyright. The Contractor, subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, and suppliers are authorized to use and
reproduce the instruments of service solely and exclusively for execution of the Work. The instruments of service may
not be used for other Projects or for additions to this Project outside the scope of the Work without the specific written
consent of the Architect.

-

§ 6.5 Electronic Notice
Written notice under this Agreement may be given by one party to the other by email as set forth below.
(Insert requirements for delivering written notice by email such as name, title, and email address of the recipient, and
whether and how the system will be required to generate a read receipt for the transmission.)

…

-, the Owner shall obtain and pay for other necessary approvals, easements, assessments, testing, inspections and 
charges.

§ 7.1.2 Except for permits and fees under Section 8.7.1 that are the responsibility of the Contractor, the Owner shall
obtain and pay for other necessary approvals, easements, assessments, and charges.

…

§ 8.1.2 The Contractor shall carefully study and compare the Contract Documents with each other and with
information furnished by the Owner. Before commencing activities, the Contractor shall (1) take field measurements
and verify field conditions; (2) carefully compare this and other information known to the Contractor with the Contract
Documents; and (3) promptly report errors, inconsistencies, or omissions discovered to the Architect.Owner
PAGE 6

The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract, shall prepare and submit for the Owner’s and Architect’s 
- information a Contractor’s construction schedule for the Work.

…

§ 8.3.2 The Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the Contract, shall furnish in writing to the Owner,
through the Architect, the names of subcontractors or suppliers for each portion of the Work. The Contractor shall not



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” 
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was 
produced at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025 under Order No.2114594188 which expires on 01/01/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only 
be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1262967141)

4

contract with any subcontractor or supplier to whom the Owner or Architect - have made a timely and reasonable 
objection.

…

The Contractor warrants to the Owner and Architect - that: (1) materials and equipment furnished under the Contract 
will be new and of good quality unless otherwise required or permitted by the Contract Documents; (2) the Work will 
be free from defects not inherent in the quality required or permitted; and (3) the Work will conform to the 
requirements of the Contract Documents. Any material or equipment warranties required by the Contract Documents 
shall be issued in the name of the Owner, or shall be transferable to the Owner, and shall commence in accordance 
with Section 12.5.

…

§ 8.7.1 The Contractor Owner shall obtain and pay for the building permit and other permits and governmental fees,
licenses, and inspections necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work.

§ 8.7.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by agencies having jurisdiction over the Work. If
the Contractor performs Work knowing it to be contrary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and
regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, the Contractor shall assume full responsibility for such Work and
shall bear the attributable costs. The Contractor shall promptly notify the Architect Owner in writing of any known
inconsistencies in the Contract Documents with such governmental laws, rules, and regulations.

…

The Contractor shall promptly review, approve in writing, and submit to the Architect shop Ownershop drawings, 
product data, samples, and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents. Shop drawings, product data, 
samples, and similar submittals are not Contract Documents.
PAGE 7

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, Architect, 
Architect’s consultants, Owner-, and agents and employees of any of them, from and against claims, damages, losses 
and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work, 
provided that such claim, damage, loss, or expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to 
injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), but only to the extent caused by the negligent 
acts or omissions of the Contractor, a subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for 
whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss or expense is caused in part by a 
party indemnified hereunder.

-
-
ARTICLE 9   ARCHITECT
§ 9.1 The Architect will provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract Documents. The Architect
will have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 9.2 The Architect will visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction to become generally familiar
with the progress and quality of the Work.

§ 9.3 The Architect will not have control over or charge of, and will not be responsible for, construction means,
methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work,
since these are solely the Contractor’s responsibility. The Architect will not be responsible for the Contractor’s failure
to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 9.4 Based on the Architect’s observations and evaluations of the Contractor’s Applications for Payment, the
Architect will review and certify the amounts due the Contractor.

§ 9.5 The Architect has authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents.



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” 
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was 
produced at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025 under Order No.2114594188 which expires on 01/01/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only 
be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1262967141)

5

§ 9.6 The Architect will promptly review and approve or take appropriate action upon Contractor’s submittals, but
only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in
the Contract Documents.

§ 9.7 On written request from either the Owner or Contractor, the Architect will promptly interpret and decide matters
concerning performance under, and requirements of, the Contract Documents.

§ 9.8 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect will be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable from
the Contract Documents, and will be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations and
decisions, the Architect will endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, will not show
partiality to either and will not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith.

§ 9.9 The Architect’s duties, responsibilities, and limits of authority as described in the Contract Documents shall not
be changed without written consent of the Owner, Contractor, and Architect. Consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld.

…

§ 10.2 The Architect Owner may authorize or order minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of
the Contract Documents and do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time.
Such authorization or order shall be in writing and shall be binding on the Owner and Contractor. The Contractor shall
proceed with such minor changes promptly.
PAGE 8

The Architect Owner will, within seven days after receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, either (1) issue 
to the Owner a Certificate for Payment in the full amount of the Application for Payment, with a copy to the 
Contractor; (2) issue to the Owner a Certificate for Payment for such amount as the Architect Owner determines is 
properly due, and notify the Contractor and Owner in writing of the Architect’s Owners reasons for withholding 
certification in part; or (3) withhold certification of the entire Application for Payment, and notify the Contractor and 
Owner of the Architect’s reason for withholding certification in whole. If certification or notification is not made 
within such seven day period, the Contractor may, upon seven additional days’ written notice to the Owner and 
Architect, stop the Work until payment of the amount owing has been received. The Contract Time and the Contract 
Sum shall be equitably adjusted due to the delay.

…

§ 12.4.1 After the Architect has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in the manner
provided in the Contract Documents.

…

§ 12.5.2 When the Contractor believes that the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, it will
notify the Architect Owner and the Architect Owner will make an inspection to determine whether the Work is
substantially complete. When the Architect Owner determines that the Work is substantially complete, the Architect
Owner shall prepare a Certificate of Substantial Completion that shall establish the date of Substantial Completion,
establish the responsibilities of the Owner and Contractor, and fix the time within which the Contractor shall finish all
items on the list accompanying the Certificate. Warranties required by the Contract Documents shall commence on the
date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof unless otherwise provided in the Certificate
of Substantial Completion.

…



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A105 – 2017. Copyright © 1993, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” 
“American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was 
produced at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025 under Order No.2114594188 which expires on 01/01/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only 
be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1262967141)

6

§ 12.6.1 Upon receipt of a final Application for Payment, the  Architect Owner will inspect the Work. When the
Architect Owner finds the Work acceptable and the Contract fully performed, the Architect Owner will promptly issue
a final Certificate for Payment.

§ 12.6.2 Final payment shall not become due until the Contractor submits to the Architect Owner releases and waivers
of liens, and data establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts, claims, security interests, or
encumbrances arising out of the Contract.
PAGE 9

§ 14.1 The Contractor shall promptly correct Work rejected by the Architect Owner as failing to conform to the
requirements of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting such rejected Work,
including the costs of uncovering, replacement, and additional testing.

…

§ 15.2.1 At the appropriate times, the Contractor shall arrange and the Owner shall bear cost of tests, inspections, and
approvals of portions of the Work required by the Contract Documents or by laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules
and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities.

§ 15.2.2 If the Architect Owner requires additional testing, the Contractor shall perform those tests.

…

The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, excluding including that 
jurisdiction’s choice of law rules.

…

If the Work is stopped under Section 12.3 for a period of 14 days through no fault of the Contractor, the Contractor 
may, upon seven additional days’ written notice to the Owner and Architect, Owner, terminate the Contract and 
recover from the Owner payment for Work executed including reasonable overhead and profit, and costs incurred by 
reason of such termination.
PAGE 10

  NA

…

  NA

…

Austin Osborne, County Manager Daniel F Coons, Coons Construction LLC     

…

LICENSE NO.: 39195A and 38006A
JURISDICTION: NV



AIA Document D401 – 2003. Copyright © 1992 and 2003. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA 
Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 20:44:22 ET on 01/22/2025 under 
Order No.2114594188 which expires on 01/01/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1262967141)

1

Certification of Document’s Authenticity
AIA® Document D401™ – 2003

I, Daniel Coons, hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, that I created the attached final 
document simultaneously with its associated Additions and Deletions Report and this certification at 20:44:22 ET on 
01/22/2025 under Order No. 2114594188 from AIA Contract Documents software and that in preparing the attached 
final document I made no changes to the original text of AIA® Document A105™ – 2017, Standard Short Form of 
Agreement Between Owner and Contractor, other than those additions and deletions shown in the associated 
Additions and Deletions Report.

_____________________________________________________________
(Signed) 

_____________________________________________________________
(Title) 

_____________________________________________________________
(Dated)



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Update, discussion, and provide direction to county staff and lobbyists regarding
upcoming bills and legislation affecting Storey County including, but not limited to, the
following: SB69 Storey County bill adjusting tax abatement programming, SB78
amending regulations related to the Comstock Historic District Commission; AB77 tax
abatements; BDR S-404 V&T Railway, AB14 voter registration of candidates; AB70
energy; AB96 master plans contents; AB64 open meeting law; AB66 addition of district
judges; proposals relating to the number of required planning commissioners; and other
bills and BDRs potentially affecting Storey County.

• Recommended motion: I [county commissioner] motion to direct county staff and
lobbyists to represent Storey County on known BDRs, bills, and other potential
legislation affecting Storey County as follows: _________.

• Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: County Manager     Contact Number: 775.847.0968

• Staff Summary: The board at each meeting directs county staff and lobbyists to take
certain positions on bills of significance to Storey County. Information on bills affecting
the county will be updated periodically throughout the 2025 legislative session at the
Storey County website at https://www.storeycounty.org/654/Legislative-Bills. Bill text
and related information is also available at the Nevada Legislature NELIS system at the
following.

• Senate Bill 69:
• https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11869/Text
• Senate Bill 78:
• https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bill/11891/Text
• Other Bills in NELIS:
• https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/83rd2025/Bills/List

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: TRUE

       34



• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0-5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: For consideration and possible approval of business license second readings:
• A. 24/7 Rapid Repair Services– Out of County / 8368 Almadine Dr. ~ Sacramento, CA
• B. ABS Facility Services – Contractor / 560 S. Promenade Ave. Ste 101 ~ Corona, CA
• C. Amundson Roofing – Contractor / 300 395 US Highway ~ New Washoe City, NV
• D. Blusky Restoration Contractors LLC – Contractor / 9110 E. Nichols Ave. Ste. 180 ~

Centennial, CO
• E. Buck’s Plumbing & Heating – Contractor / 275 Gallaway Ln. ~ Reno, NV
• F. EPC Services Company – Contractor / 1241 S 31st St. W. ~ Billings, MT
• G. GGRM Lawfirm – General / 420 USA Parkway # 106 ~ McCarran, NV
• H. I.S.E. Plumbing, Heating & Air – Contractor / 3551 Penn National Dr. ~ Reno, NV
• I. Keller North America, Inc. – Contractor / 7550 Teague Rd. Ste. 300 ~ Hanover, MD
• J. Kroeker Inc. – Contractor / 4627 S. Chestnut Ave. ~ Fresno, CA
• K. Masterfield Construction – Contractor / 1455 Deming Way # 12 ~ Sparks, NV
• L. Mini Mart – General / 580 E. Sydney ~ McCarran, NV
• M. Treats Galore LLC – Out of County / 575 Magistrate Ct. ~ Reno, NV

• Recommended motion: Approval

• Prepared by: Ashley Mead

Department: Community Development     Contact Number: 7758470966

• Staff Summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are
normally approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next
meeting. A follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted
prior to the

• Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

• Supporting Materials: See Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

      35



• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County Community Development 

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide (775) 847-0966  ~  Fax (775) 847-0935
P O Box 526  ~  Virginia City NV 89440 CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org 

To: Jim Hindle, Clerk’s office January 27, 2025 

Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email 

Fr: Ashley Mead 

Please add the following item(s) to the February 04, 2025 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda: 

SECOND READINGS: 

A. 24/7 Rapid Repair Services– Out of County / 8368 Almadine Dr. ~ Sacramento, CA

B. ABS Facility Services – Contractor / 560 S. Promenade Ave. Ste 101 ~ Corona, CA

C. Amundson Roofing – Contractor / 300 395 US Highway ~ New Washoe City, NV

D. Blusky Restoration Contractors LLC – Contractor / 9110 E. Nichols Ave. Ste. 180 ~ Centennial, CO

E. Buck’s Plumbing & Heating – Contractor / 275 Gallaway Ln. ~ Reno, NV

F. EPC Services Company – Contractor / 1241 S 31st St. W. ~ Billings, MT

G. GGRM Lawfirm – General / 420 USA Parkway # 106 ~ McCarran, NV

H. I.S.E. Plumbing, Heating & Air – Contractor / 3551 Penn National Dr. ~ Reno, NV

I. Keller North America, Inc. – Contractor / 7550 Teague Rd. Ste. 300 ~ Hanover, MD

J. Kroeker Inc. – Contractor / 4627 S. Chestnut Ave. ~ Fresno, CA

K. Masterfield Construction – Contractor / 1455 Deming Way # 12 ~ Sparks, NV

L. Mini Mart – General / 580 E. Sydney ~ McCarran, NV

M. Treats Galore LLC – Out of County / 575 Magistrate Ct. ~ Reno, NV

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office 

       Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office  



Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 mins

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with
the Storey County Firefighters’ Association IAFF Local 4227. This meeting will
commence immediately following the regular commission meeting.

• Recommended motion: No action.

• Prepared by: Brandie Lopez

Department: HR     Contact Number: 775-847-0968

• Staff Summary: Pursuant to NRS 288 and the existing bargaining agreements between
the Storey County Firefighters’ Association and the Storey County Fire Protection
District and Storey County are proposed to be modified pursuant to tentatively agreed
successor agreements.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

      38



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 2/4/2025 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 60 mins

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with
the Storey County Employees’ Association Comstock Chapter, AFSCME Local 4041.
This meeting will begin immediately following the closed session with the Board of
Storey County Fire Commissioners.

• Recommended motion: No action.

• Prepared by: Brandie Lopez

Department: HR     Contact Number: 775-847-0968

• Staff Summary: Pursuant to NRS 288 and the existing 2022-2025 collective bargaining
agreement between the Storey County Employees’ Association and the Storey County
Board of County Commissioners, the bargaining agreement is proposed to be modified as
tentatively agreed between the parties.

• Supporting Materials: No Attachments

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

       39


	BOCC Meeting - Agenda - 2-4-2025 (1-29-2025 1 11 15 PM).pdf
	BOCC Meeting - Meeting Packet - 2-4-2025 (1-29-2025 1 12 06 PM)
	Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the February 4, 2025, meeting.
	Consideration and possible approval of the minutes from the January 7, 2025, meeting.
	For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
A.	Cosco Fire Protection Inc. – Contractor / 3620 West Reno Ave, #K ~ Las Vegas, NV
B.	Empire Southwest LLC– Out of County / 3300 St Rose Pkwy ~ Henderson, NV
C.	Inside Out Construction
	Approval of claims in the amount of $6,231,231.49.
	Consideration and possible approval for the County Manager to sign and enter into a contract with Actalent for the provision of temporary construction staffing services to help meet project deadlines not to exceed $165,000.
	Consideration and possible approval to authorize the County Manager to approve and sign a contract addendum between Storey County and Cintas Corporation No. 2, doing business as Cintas First Aid & Safety, for an additional AED to be located at the Storey
	Consideration and Possible approval of Grant of Easement file 2025-017 from Storey County to NV Energy for Utility Facilities within the C Street Right-of-Way near Flowery Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada to facilitate project development.
	Discussion and possible approval of County staff regarding pending federal appropriation requests for federal fiscal year 2025, and dependent on the passage of the 2025 federal fiscal year budget, federal appropriation proposals for federal fiscal year 20
	Consideration and possible approval to authorize Storey County Business Development to reallocate an amount not to exceed $4,000 of budgeted and available funds from the Professional Services account to host regional attendees at the National Association
	Consideration and possible approval to authorize Storey County Business Development to author and submit a letter supporting SB5 to make the Lieutenant Governor’s Office of Small Business Advocacy (OSBA) a permanent fixture within the Office of the Lieute
	Storey County FY25 2nd Quarter Financial Review.
	County Manager to provide a quarterly report to the board.
	Consideration and possible approval to purchase 3 new Laser Turbidimeters and 4 new SC4500 Controllers for the water filters at the Water Treatment Plant in the amount of $32,281.35 with SCADA programming not to exceed $5,000 for a grand total of $37,281.
	Water-Sewer FY25 2nd Quarter Financial Review.
	Fire District FY25 2nd Quarter Financial Review.
	Consideration and possible approval for policy P603 Sick Leave and policy P602 Annual Leave with modifications allowing leave buyout amounts at the time of retirement to be utilized to purchase PERS service credits.
	Consideration and possible approval to dispose of by means of auction, donation, sale, or trade-in, of a 2006 Yukon to be returned to Storey County, and a 2006 Ford F350 Dozer tender.
	Election of Secretary to the Board of Storey County Highway Commissioners for the term of one year.
	Report of Public Works Department regarding roads and highways throughout Storey County.
	Discussion and possible consideration approving the Storey County Sheriff's Office receipt of a Grant from the State of Nevada Department of Public Safety, Office of Criminal Justice Assistance in the amount of $30,836.64, Federal Award# l SPBJA-21-GG-002
	Discussion and possible consideration approving the Storey County Sheriff's Office to receive a grant from the State of Nevada Department of Public Safety, Office of Criminal Justice Assistance in the Amount of $15,000, Federal Award Number l SPBJA-22-GG-
	Discussion and consideration approving the Storey County Sheriff's Office to receive one Humvee 4-wheel-drive vehicle Serial Number l 4016NV00004 from the Douglas County Sheriff's Office through the State of Nevada l 033 LESO program for use as a Search a
	Consideration and possible approval to re-appoint Scott Jolcover to a 4-year term on the Storey County Board of Equalization.
	Consideration and possible approval to accept a quote from Coons Construction for site improvements at 800 South C Street to provide sidewalk widening for ADA compliance, bollards for building protection, and a flagpole in an amount not to exceed $21,478.
	Update, discussion, and provide direction to county staff and lobbyists regarding upcoming bills and legislation affecting Storey County including, but not limited to, the following: SB69 Storey County bill adjusting tax abatement programming, SB78 amendi
	For consideration and possible approval of business license second readings:
A.	24/7 Rapid Repair Services– Out of County / 8368 Almadine Dr. ~ Sacramento, CA
B.	ABS Facility Services – Contractor / 560 S. Promenade Ave. Ste 101 ~ Corona, CA
C.	Amundso
	Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the Storey County Firefighters’ Association IAFF Local 4227. This meeting will commence i
	Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the Storey County Employees’ Association Comstock Chapter, AFSCME Local 4041. This meetin




